PLANNING COMMISSION
AGENDA
MARCH 12, 2026
5:01 PM.

Commissioner’s Chambers, Okaloosa County Administrative Complex
1250 Eglin Parkway N, Shalimar, FL 32579

Commissioner Kimberlie Birr Griggs, District 1 Commissioner Brooke McLean, District 2
Vacant, District 3 Commissioner Todd Tarchalski, District 4
Chairman Commissioner John Collins, District 5 Okaloosa County School Board Rep, Bill Smith

Eglin Air Force Base Representative, James Hoff

CALL TO ORDER

ROLLCALL

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR DECEMBER 18, 2025

OPEN TO PUBLIC (FOR ANY ITEMS NOT QUASI JUDICIAL ON THIS AGENDA)
ANNOUNCEMENTS

ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA

ACCEPTANCE OF THE AGENDA

= Qe =2 =2 8 a8 »

OATHTAKING

o
.

DISCLOSURES

. OLD BUSINESS

None

K. NEW BUSINESS

a. Applications for Development Review
None
b. Public Hearings

Agenda Item # 1: Consideration of a petition by Benjamin Plenge, Brian Hormberg, Clayton Harpster,
Dominick Vicari, James Hecker, Marianne Vicari, Michelle Harpster, Michelle Walker, OUR Soil, Inc.,
Sheldon Harpster, Tiffany Matthews, Tracy Matthews, Victoria Humker, Wesley Florez, and William
Adams challenging the issuance of a Development Order for Buttonbush Meadows Subdivision, a proposed




22-lot single family detached residential subdivision as submitted by Cole Granger, PE with Seaside
Engineering & Surveying, LLC, agent on behalf of the applicant, Christopher R. Ryles. The property is
currently zoned Agricultural (AA), and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation is Agricultural
(AG). The property is located on the east side of Galliver Cutoff Road, south of Keyser Mill Road, notth of
Country Living Road, Baker, FL. Property contains 26.79 acres more or less.

L. OTHER BUSINESS

s Election — Vice Chairman

M. ADJOURNMENT




PLANNING COMMISSION
MINUTES
DECEMBER 18, 2025

5:01 P.M.
The regular meeting of the Okaloosa County Planning Commission was held Thursday, December 18, 2025, 5:01
p.m., Commissioner’s Chambers, Okaloosa County Administrative Complex 1250 Eglin Parkway N, Shalimar,
FL 32579.
Board members in attendance were John Collins, Todd Tarchalski, and Kimberlie Birr Gri gas.
Eglin Representative Cheryl Sawyers was not in attendance,

Okaloosa County School Board representative Bill Smith was not in attendance.

Growth Management Staff in attendance were Randy Woodruff, Deputy Director, Stuart Campbell, Planner IIT; and
Theresa Ehrhardi and Emily Rider, Administrative Specialists.

County Attorney Kerry Parsons was in attendance.

Speaker recognition forms were submitted by persons wishing to speak as follows:
CALL TO ORDER

Chairman John Collins called the meeting to order at 5:01 PM.

ROLL CALL

Theresa Ehrhardt conducted roll call.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR NOVEMBER 13,2025

Motion to approve minutes made by Todd Tarchalski and second by Kimberlic Birr Griggs. -3 ayes. Motion
Passes Unanimously,

OPEN TO PUBLIC (FOR ANY ITEMS NOT QUASK JUDICIAL ON THIS AGENDA)
There were none.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

There were none.

ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA

There were none.

1 of4 DECEMBER 18, 2025

(SHALIMAR)



G. ACCEPTANCE OF THE AGENDA

Motion to accept the agenda as written made by Todd Tarchalski and second by Kimberlie Birr Griggs.. —3
aves. Motion Passes Unanimously.

H. OATH TAKING
Kerry Parsons administered the Oath for 21l speakers.
I. DISCLOSURES
Theresa Ehrhardt read disclosures to the Board. All replied no.
J. OLD BUSINESS
None.
K. NEW BUSINESS

a. Applications for Devclopment Review

None.

b. Public Hearings

Agenda Ttem # 1: Consideration a Development Agreement by and between the Board of County Commigsioners
and DR Horton, Inc. a Delaware Corporation for the purpose of establishing devclopment rights for certain real
property located within the ynincorporated area of Okaloosa County; providing assurances in accordance with
existing laws and policies subject to the conditions of the agreement; and, insuring that the agreement is in
compliance with applicable provisions of Section 163.3220-163.3243, Florida Statutes, the Okaloosa County
Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code. The property is currently zoned Residential 1 (R-1) and the
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation is Low Density Residential (LDR). A general location of the property
is just north of Old Spanish Trail (Hwy 10), west of Brookwood Ln and east of Clint Mason contains 612 acres
more or less. The property can be identificd by parcel ID numbers 17-3N-22-0000-0005-0160, 8-3N-22-0000-0005-
0010, and 18-3N-22-0000-0001-0000,

Chairman John Collins removed himself from agenda item #1 due to conflict of interest. Please see Form 8B after
the minutes.

Stuart Campbell presented agenda item #1.
Chairman Collins called for a motion.
Motion to recominend approval of Agenda Item 1 as written fo request consideration of an amendment to the

Development Agreement by and between the Board of County Commissioners and DR Horton, Inc., made by
Kimberlie Birv Griggs and second by Todd Tarchalski. -2 apes. Motion Passes Unanimously.

Agenda Item # 2: Consideration of an application for a Small Scale Plan Amendment and Rezoning as submiited
by Kermit H. Geotge with Deep South Engineeting Services, LLC (Agent), on behalf of the owner Billy Brown.
The request is to change the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation for the three subject

20f4 DECEMBER 18, 2025

(SHALIMAR)



Stuart Campbell presented agenda item #2.

Kermit George with Deep South Engineering Services discussed the agenda item.,
Chairman Collins called for a motion.
Motion to recommend approval of Agenda Item 2 as writien to request consideration of an_amendment (o the

FLUM by and between the Board of County Commissioners and Billy Brown, made by Kimberlie Birr Gripos
and second by Todd Tarchalski . -3 ayes. Motion Passes Unanimously,

Motion to recommend rezoning of Agenda Item 2 from Mixed Use to General Commercial (C-3) between the
Board of County Commissioners and Billy Brown, made by Kimberlie Birr Griges and second by Todd
Tarchalski . -3 ayes. Motion Passes Unanimousiy,

Agenda Item # 3: Consideration of an application for a Small Scale Plam Amendment and Rezoning as
submitted by John Lourida-Garcia (Owner). The request is to change the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use
Map (FLLUM) designation for the subject property from Mixed Use (MU) to Commerecial (C) or a more
restrictive FLLUM designation. If the FLUM amendment is approved, there is a companion request to rezone the
property from Mixed Use (MU) to General Commercial (C-3) or a more restrictive zoning district. The subject
property is 0.51 acres and located 200-feet northeast of the intersection of Green Acres Road and Green Acres
Blvd., Fori Walton Beach, Florida.

Stuart Campbell presented agenda item #3.
John Lourida-Garcia let the board know he’s available to answer any questions.
Discussion ensued.

Robert Kirkstrike, a resident in the neighborhood, voiced his concerns about the change in the Zoning of the
property. He presented pictures of the area around the property in the agenda item.

Discussion ensued.
Chairman Collins called for a motion.
Motion to recommend approval of A enda Item 3 as written to request consideration of an amendment to the

FLUM by and between the Board of County Commissioners and John Lourida-Garcia, made by Kimberlie
Bire Griggs and second by John Collins, -3 ayes, Motion Passes Unanimously,

Motion to recommend regoning of Agenda Ftem 3 from Mixed Use to General Commercial (C-3 and between
the Board of County Commissioners and John Lourida-Garcia, made by Kimberlie Birr Griges and second by
John Collins, -3 ayes. Motion Passes Unanimously.

Jof4 DECEMBER 18, 2025

(SHALIMAR)



L. OTHER BUSINESS

The January 8, 2026, Planning Commission meeting will be held at the Commissioner’s Chambers, Okaloosa
County Administrative Complex 1250 Eglin Parkway N, Shalimar, FL 32579

M. ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Collins adjourned the mecting at approximately 5:41 p.m.

Ao Efctlae”

Theresa Ehrhardt, Recording Secretary

Prepared by:

Date  12/19/2025

4 of 4 DECEMBER 18, 2025

(SHALIMAR)



AGENDA ITEM 1

PLANNING COMMISSION
AGENDA REQUEST

TO: HONORABLE CHAIRMAN & MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION

THROUGH: Kristen Shell, AICP, MEng, Director
FROM: Randy Woodruff, AICP, MPA, Deputy Director

SUBJECT: DOH-001232-2025 Petition for Development Order Hearing, Buttonbush Meadows
Subdivision (DO-0625-0014)

DATE: March 12, 2026
BCC DISTRICT: (3) Commissioner Cox
PLANNING COMMISSION DISTRICT: (3) Vacant

PUBLIC HEARING: Consideration of a petition by Benjamin Plenge, Brian Hormberg,
Clayton Harpster, Dominick Vicari, James Hecker, Marianne Vicari, Michelle Harpster,
Michelle Walker, OUR Soil, Inc., Sheldon Harpster, Tiffany Matthews, Tracy Matthews,
Victoria Humker, Wesley Florez, and William Adams challenging the issuance of a
Development Order for Buttonbush Meadows Subdivision, a proposed 22-lot single family
detached residential subdivision as submitted by Cole Granger, PE with Seaside Engineering &
surveying, LLC, agent on behalf of the applicant, Christopher R. Ryles. The property is
currently zoned Agricultural (AA), and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation is
Agricultural (AG). The property is located on the east side of Galliver Cutoff Road, south of
Keyser Mill Road, north of Country Living Road, Baker, FL. Property contains 26.79 acres
more or less,

The Petition for Development Order Hearing was timely filed in accordance with Section
1.11.08 of the Okaloosa County Land Development Code, hereinafter "LDC" by Benjamin
Plenge, Brian Hormberg, Clayton Harpster, Dominick Vicari, James Hecker, Marianne
Vicari, Michelle Harpster, Michelle Walker, OUR Soil, Inc., Sheldon Harpster, Tiffany
Matthews, Tracy Matthews, Victoria Humker, Wesley Florez, and William Adams on
November 24, 2025. The petition was followed by a required Memorandum of Error
(MOE) which was filed on December 8, 2025. Copies of the MOE applications are attached
(see Exhibit 1).

As used in this report "Application” means the Development Order Application submitted
by Seaside Engineering, "County" means staff and employees of Okaloosa County,
"Applicant" means Christopher R. Ryles., and "Petitioner" means the signatories listed
above to the Petition for Development Order 1Hearing dated on or about November 24, 2025,



DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCEDURE

Section 1A.03.03 of the Land Development Code (herein referenced as “LDC”) sets forth the
procedure for reviewing applications for development orders. The purpose of this Section is
to provide a standardized and uniform system for the County's review of applications for
development order or permit approval. This Section sets forth the essential requirements of
law that must be met for a development order or permit to be reviewed and approved, which
shall be supplemental to the general guidelines prescribed at Section 1A.02.04 (LDC), The
following is a list of applicable LDC provisions and corresponding action taken by the County
in compliance with each provision.

1.

Pre-application review (l1A.03.02, LDC). Pre-application review is a voluntary and
informal meeting between a development order applicant and county staff. A pre-
application review meeting was not requested by the applicant for the proposed development.

. Development Order Application (1A.03.03, 3, LDC). A Development Order application in

the form and content prescribed by the Planning Official was submitted to the County on
June 17, 2025, for a proposed 22-lot single-family subdivision (see Exhibit 6). On September
17, 2025, atevised plan was submitted for review.

. Public Notice (1.11.07, LDC). A public notice sign was posted on the property on or about

June 18, 2025 (sce Exhibit 4).

4. Completeness review (lA.03.03, 3, b, LDC). The Planning Official, or designee, is

responsible for "completeness” review of applications. Applications are reviewed on a
preliminary basis and will be deemed "complete” or "incomplete” within five [5] days
after the date the application is stamped in and officially received by the Department. The
application was deemed completed on June 24, 2025.

5. Administrative Review (1A.03.03, 4, LDC). Once an application is deemed complete, it

must be distributed for administrative review to all affected departments and agencies.
Reviewing agencies are required to provide written comments to the Planning Official, or
designee, within forty-five (45) days after the date the application is distributed. The
application was routed for review on June 24, 2025.

6. Applicant response to comments (1A.03.03, 4, LDC). The Planning Official, or designee,

is then required to send the applicant a project status letter which must include any obj ections
or comments received from any review agencies as well as comments or objections from the
Growth Management Department. The applicant then has sixty (60) days from the date of
the status letter to resolve any objections raised which may necessitate re-submittal of site
plans, drawings, and other necessary information, however, the 60-days may be extended
by the Planning Official upon written request by the applicant. Comments were submitted
to the Applicant on July 8, 2025. Agency approvals were received as follows:

2



Street Name Approval: June 10, 2025

Plat Name Affidavit Received: June 11, 2025

Holt Water System (Water Concurrency): September 3, 2025

Solid Waste Concurrency Received: June 24, 2025

North Okaloosa Fire & Life Safety Approval: September 3, 2025 {Approved in
Coordination with Holt Fire Chief)

Public Works Approval: October 20, 2025

Planning Approval (NOI to Issue a DO Letter): November 17, 2025

7. Notice of Intent (NOI) (1A.03.09, LDC). Upon completion of the development review
process the Planning Official, or designee, must issue a notice of intent to approve, approve
with conditions, or deny a development order. At this time, the Planning Official, or
designee, shall post a 2' X 3' sign in a conspicuous place on the property involved which
describes the intended action, the type and nature of the development being proposed, contact
information, and a statement that any adversely affected party may request a "Development
Order Hearing" as specified in S. 1.11.08. The notice of intent sign was posted on the
property on November 17, 2025 (see Exhibit 5).

8. Development Order hearing (1.11.08, LDC). A Petition for Development Order Hearing was
timely filed by Benjamin Plenge, Brian Hormberg, Clayton Harpster, Dominick Vicari,
James Hecker, Marianne Vicari, Michelle Harpster, Michelle Walker, OUR Soil, Inc.,
Sheldon Harpster, Tiffany Matthews, Tracy Matthews, Victoria Humker, Wesley Florez, and
William Adams on or about November 24, 2025. The petition was followed by a required
Memorandum of Error (MOE) which was timely filed on or about December 8, 2025 (see
Exhibit 1).

9. In accordance with Section 1.11.08, Development Order Hearing, prior to the hearing date
the Planning Official shall schedule a meeting between the county staff, the applicant, and
the Petitioner so as to provide an opportunity for the objectives to be resolved. The Mediation
Meeting was held on February 4, 2026. The applicant and petitioners were unable to resolve
raised objectives.

GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR ISSUING DEVELOPMENT ORDERS

The decision to approve, approve with conditions, or deny a development order or permit shall
be based upon the following general guidelines as specified in Section 1A.02.04, LDC.

1. The proposed development must be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and applicable
provisions and requirements of this Code.

Analysis:  The proposed development project has been reviewed by applicable
development review agencies and found to be consistent with the Comprehensive
Plan and LDC. With regard to the Comprehensive Plan, the development is consistent with
the land uses, densities or intensities, capacity or size, timing, and other aspects of the Plan
specified in the Administration Element, Policy 1.7.

3



2.1.7. Relationship to development orders: Section 163.3194, Florida Statutes requires
that any development order issued by a local government must be consistent with the
adopted comprehensive plan. A development order shall be considered consistent with
this Plan if the land uses, densities or intensities, capacity or size, timing, and other
aspects of the development are compatible with and further the objectives, policies, land
uses, densities or intensities, prescribed in this Plan. When making determinations
regarding whether or not a development or a development order is consistent with this
Plan the following guidelines shall be considered.

Analysis: The proposed development order has been reviewed by applicable agencies and
found to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and LDC and densities or intensities,
capacity or size, timing, and other aspects of the development are compatible with and
further the objectives, policies, land uses, densities ov intensities prescribed in this
Plan.

3.2.7.1 Land uses: The land use associated with a development or development order shall be
deemed consistent with this Plan when the type of land use to be developed (i.e. residential,
commercial, etc.) is allowed in the proper land use category specified in the Future Land
Use Element and is located within the proper land use designation as shown on the Future
Land Use Map;

Analysis: The proposed development is located within the Agriculture (AG) Future Land
Use (FLU) Map designation. Single-family vesidential subdivisions are an allowed use in
in the Agriculture (AG) Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation. The proposed
development is consistent with this criterion.

4.3.7.1 Densities or intensities: The density or intensity of a development or development
order shall be deemed consistent with this Plan when the proposed density or intensity of
use is equal to or less than the allowed density or intensity specified in the Future Land
Use Element (FLU) for the type of development allowed in cach land use category.

Analysis: The maximum allowed density in the Agriculture (AG) Future Land
Use Map (FLUM) designation is one (1) dwelling unit per acre. The density for the
proposed development is 0.82 dwelling units per acre. Intensity does not apply to
residential development. The proposed development iy consistent with this criterion.

5. 4.7.1 Capacity, size, or timing: The capacity, size, or timing of a development or
development order shall be deemed consistent with this Plan when:

1. Public facilities and services are adequate and available to serve the proposed
development concurrent with the impact or demand that will be created by the proposed
development;

2. The impact of the proposed development will not exceed or degrade level-of-service
standards specified in the Capital Improvements Element, or;
4



3. The developer of the project involved pays a proportionate share fee consistent with
applicable laws and ordinances.

Analysis: Public facilities and services are adequate and available to serve the proposed
development, adopted level of service standards will be maintained. The proposed
development is consistent with this criterion.

6. 5.7.1 Consistency with objectives and policies: A development or development order shall
be deemed consistent with the objectives and policies of this Plan as follow:

1.The objective or policy must first have the effect of being a regulation, restriction, or
limitation on the allowable land use or development project, or otherwise imposes a
condition as a prerequisite to development (for example, an objective imposing a shoreline
setback would be such a restriction where an objective that states the county will pave X
miles of roads would not);

2.The objective or policy is relevant and germane to the issue(s) or objection(s) raised
relative to a particular development or development order (for example, application of a
coastal-related policy to a non-coastal area or an urban -related policy to a rural area),
and; numbered objective and its corresponding numbered policies must be evaluated as
a whole to fully determine the intended meaning and context.

3.No objective or policy shall be applied, used, or taken out of context, Each numbered
objective and its corresponding numbered policies must be evaluated as a whole to fully
determine the intended meaning and context.

Analysis: The County reviews and evaluates pertinent Comprehensive Plan Policies and
Objectives consistency for each Development Order application reviewed. The County also
reviews and evaluates pertinent LDC standards and technical requirements for each
Development Order application reviewed.,

7. The proposed development must not create the potential for a significant financial
liability or unreasonable hardship on the County.

Analysis: The proposed development project has been reviewed by applicable County
Departments and found not to create a financial liability or hardship on the County,

8. The proposed development must not create an unreasonable hazard or nuisance, or
constitute a threat to the general public health, safety, and welfare.

Analysis: The proposed development project has been reviewed and approved by applicable
agencies with regard to public health, safety, and welfare, and no threats or issues were
identified,

9. The proposed development must comply with all other applicable laws, statutes,
y



regulations, codes, or ordinances.

Analysis: Development review demonstrates compliance with applicable laws, statutes, rules,
codes, or ordinances.

10. The proposed development must not jeopardize the current and long-term viability of
military installations and flight corridors provided, however, that appropriate mitigation may
be required to minimize negative impact.

Analysis: The proposed project will not jeopardize the current and long-term viability of
military installations and flight corridors.

There shall be a rebuttable presumption that these guidelines have been met when all
applicable provisions and requirements of this Code have been met for development or a
type of development.

Analysis: The proposed development is found to be consistent with Section 14.02.04, General
Guidelines for Issuing Development Orders and Permits.

The Petition for Development Order Hearing was timely filed in accordance with Section
1.11.08 of the Okaloosa County LDC, hereinafter "LDC" by Benjamin Plenge, Brian
Hormberg, Clayton Harpster, Dominick Vicari, James Hecker, Marianne Vicari, Michelle
Harpster, Michelle Walker, OUR Soil, Inc., Sheldon Harpster, Tiffany Matthews, Tracy
Matthews, Victoria Humker, Wesley Florez, and William Adams on or about November 24,
2025. The petition was followed by a required Memorandum of Error (MOE) which was
timely filed on or about December 8, 2025. Copies of the MOE applications are attached
(see Exhibit 1).

Petitioners Objections

The MOE’s attached identify objections to the proposed development as fo LDC regulations
and Comprehensive Plan Policies. Petitioners’ objections include, but not limited to, access to
a county maintained road, stormwater, minimum lot size, infrastructure, traffic, landscape
plans, concurrency, parking and safety.

County responses fo Petitioners objections are hereby provided below:

OBJECTION 1.

Section 2.01.04(1), (5), (8) Permitted Uses: The following uses are permitted as of right in an
AA district. All other uses are permitted by special exception, or prohibited.

1. General Agriculture. Land, buildings, support machinery, and other appurtenances typically
found in the production of agricultural products and activities including cropland, pastureland,
orchards, vineyards, nurseries, ornamental horticalture, groves, tree farms, timberland feedlots,
farmhouses, barns, stables, silos, farm accessory buildings and sheds, seasonal roadside produce

6



stands, and the like. Specific, permitted agriculture uses are listed and described in Chapter 11,
North American Industry Classification System, U.S. Census Bureau, 2012.

5. Residential. Residential uses including single-family detached homes, category A and B
manufactured/mobile homes, customary accessory uses and structures (shed, garages, pools,
decks, out-buildings, etc.), residential subdivisions, home occupations, and family day care
homes. More than one dwelling may be permitted when the additional dwellings will be
occupied by members of the same immediate family, farm workers, or caretakers employed by
the owner and the additional dwellings are not offered out for rent or sale.

8. One-Acre Lots. The minimum lot size in the AA district may be one (1) acre when the
following conditional requirements are met:

a. Access to each lot must be from an existing state or county-maintained roadway.

b. Each lot created shall have a minimum of 50 feet frontage on such state or county maintained
road.

¢. Where two or less lots are created access may be provided from a recorded casement.
d. Development shall not be permitted in floodways.

County Response: As specified in the aforementioned sections of the LDC, detached single-
family homes are a permitted use in the Agriculture (AA) zoning district on one acre lots
as defined therein.

OBJECTION 2,

Section 2.01.01 Purpose: The purpose of the Agriculture (AA) district is to provide areas for
production of plants and animals useful to humans, including to a variable extent the preparation
of plant and animal products for human use by sale or otherwise and includes aquaculture,
horticulture, floriculture, viticulture, silviculture, dairy, livestock, poultry, bees, and any and all
forms of farm products and farm production. This district is also suitable for preservation of
green spaces, conservation uses, outdoor recreation uses, very low-density residential uses, and
public/institutional uses.

County Response: As specified in Section 2.01.04(5), detached single-family homes are a
permitted use within the Agriculture (AA) district on one acre lots as defined therein.

OBJECTION 3.

Section 2.01.02 Intent: The intent of the AA district is to implement and otherwise put into
regulatory effect the provisions of the “Agricultural” future land use category established in the
Comprehensive Plan.

County Response: As specified in Section 2.01.04(5), detached single-family homes are a
permitted use within the Agriculture (AA) district on one acre lots as defined therein.




OBJECTION 4.

Section 1A.03.03 Review Procedures: All persons wishing to obtain a development order or
permit authorizing development activities within the unincorporated area of the County must
comply with the following procedures.

1. Development Permits: The following development activities because of their size or nature
may require a permit but may not be required to undergo the extensive review process required
by this Section. These include, but may not be limited to, the following.

a. Construction of single-family or duplex dwellings; or the placement of one mobile home or
manufactured housing unit on an individual lot or parcel of land when such activity is not part
of a larger, common plan of development.

b. Construction, placement, or location of accessory buildings, structures, or uscs.

¢. Interior remodeling that occurs totally within an existing building or structure provided there
is no change of use or increase in density or intensity.

d. Renovations, expansions, or similar activities involving an increase in the size or square
footage of any structure, including parking areas, provided such activity is less than 10% of the
area of the existing structure or 1,000 square feet, whichever is less.

e. Any development activity which the Planning Official, after consultation with the Public
Works Director and Water and Sewer Director, determines to be of minor impact not
necessitating the issuance of a development order.

County Response: The Okaloosa County Code Enforcement Office issued a Stop-Work
Order on November 25, 2025, (See Exhibit 7). The Okaloosa County Code Enforcement
office received a complaint from a neighbor about work being completed on the property.
Upon inspection, the Code Enforcement office found that the property was actively being
cleared without a development order. Therefore, Code Enforcement issued a stop work
order. The County’s Code Enforcement case will close upon issuance of the Development
Order.

OBJECTION 5.

Section 6.06.101 Retention and Detention Facility Design Features: In addition to the
quantity and quality criteria established by this ordinance, stormwater ponds shall be designed,
constructed and maintained in accordance with the following design features:

1. Detention and retention areas shall meet all criteria established by FDEP relating to the design,
construction and maintenance of stormwater management facilities, including but not limited to
guidelines for littoral shelf, permanent pool, and recovery of treatment volume.

2. Detention and retention areas shall be designed, where possible, so that shorclines are sinuous
rather than straight and so that the length of shoreline is maximized, thus providing aesthetic

benefits and offering more space for the growth of littoral vegetation;
8



3. The banks of detention and retention areas shall slope at a grade of 3:1 or flatter to the bottom
of a dry facility or to a depth of three (3) fect below the normal water level of a wet facility; No
slope for berms or swales shall be constructed steeper than 3:1,

4. In residential areas, a perimeter fence with a minimum height of six (6) feet shall be provided
around all retention and detention areas with side slopes steeper than 3:1 or on any retention or
detention arca with a depth greater than four (4) feet measured from the top of berm to the
bottom of the area. Gates for maintenance access shall be placed in locations accessible to
maintenance vehicles.

5. In single-family detached residential developments with densities of four (4) or more units
per acre, retention/detention areas should be located adjacent to roadways for easy access and
maintenance and not be situated behind backyards,

County Response: The Okaloosa County Public Works Department approved the
stormwater management plan for the Buttonbush Meadows Subdivision on November 20,
2025,

OBJECTION 6.

Section 6.06.201

County Response: This reference is to a Section of the LDC that does not exist,

OBJECTION 7.

Section 6.06.010
County Response: This reference is to a Section of the LDC that does not exist.
OBJECTION 8.

Section 6.06.21
County Response: This reference is to a Section of the LDC that does not exist.

OBJECTION 9.

Section 1.11.08 Development Order Hearing. Action: Upon completion of the administrative
review specified in section 1A.03.03. 4 the Planning Official shall issue a Notice of Intent to
approve, approve with conditions, or deny a development order.

At this time any person, including the Planning Official, may petition for a Development Order
Hearing, The petition shall be submitted to the Planning Official within seven (7) days after the
Notice of Intent is issued. The Petition shall be submitted on forms provided by the County and
shall include the name, address, telephone number, and email address (if available) of the
Petitioner and a statement as to why the Petitioner is objecting to issuance of the Development
Order,



No later than fourteen (14) days after the date the petition is filed the Petitioner shall submit a
Memorandum of Error which 1 contains the specific Code requirements and provisions by
citation the Petitioner is objecting to, the reasons why the development order is not consistent
with the identified citations, and any corrective actions to remedy the objections raised. Failure
to comply with this part shall render the Petition abandoned and withdrawn. At the Development
Order Hearing the Petitioner's arguments shall be limited to the objections raised in the
Memorandum of Error. Objections raised pursuant to this Section shall be to this Code only and
not any other approval or permit that may be required from an agency other than the County.
Any assertion or challenge that the Development Order is not consistent with the
Comprehensive Plan shall be as specified at 5.163.3215, Fla. Stat

Upon receipt of the petition the Planning Official shall schedule the hearing on the agenda of
the Planning Commission for the next practical meeting date. Prior to the hearing date the
Planning Official shall schedule a meeting between county staff, the applicant, and the Petitioner
so as to provide an opportunity for the objections to be resolved. No development order shall be
approved or denied until after the Development Order Hearing has been held. All interested
persons may attend the hearing and present verbal or written statements. At the conclusion of
the hearing the Planning Commission shall provide a recommendation to the Planning Official
whether to approve or deny the development order application at issue, or may remand to the
Planning Official for further consideration with additional conditions. In the event that the
Planning Commission recommendation is contrary to the Notice of Intent the mafter shall be
scheduled on the agenda of the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for the next practical
meeting date. Prior to the BCC hearing date the Planning Official shall schedule a meeting
between county staff, the applicant, and the Petitioner so as to provide an opportunity for the
objections to be resolved. The BCC shall then take final action on the matter.

Character of Proceeding: Quasi-judicial

Public Notice: Public notice shall be as specified in s. 1.1 1.03 at the time and expense of the
Petitioner.

County Response: The Notice of Intent letter and sign posting requirement were completed
on November 17, 2025, the petition for the Development Order Hearing was received
November 24, 2025, the Memorandum of Error was received on December 8, 2025, and
the Mediation Meeting was held on February 4, 2026.

OBJECTION 10.

Section 1.05.00 GENERAL EXEMPTIONS: The following conditions and situations shall be
exempt from the provisions of this Code only to the extent described hercin.

1. Family Homestead. The density requirements of this Code shall not apply to the conveyance
of an individual parcel of property to be used solely as a family homestead by a child, step-child,
adopted child, grandchild, sibling, adoption parent, step-parent, grand-parent, or parent of the
owner of the property being conveyed. All other applicable Code requirements must be met for
property conveyed in this manner. This exemptilctn shall apply only to lots or parcels greater than



one (1} acre in size when no more than four lots or parcels, including the “parent parcel”, will
be created from a “parent parcel.”

2. Development of Regional Impact (DRI). Nothing in this Code shall modify or limit the rights
of any person to complete any development that had been authorized as a DRI pursuant to
Chapter 380, Florida Statutes who has been issued a final development order where
development has commenced and continued in good faith consistent with the authorized
development order.

3. Farm Operations. Farm operations shall be exempt from the provisions of this Code to the
cxtent specified in s. 823.14, Florida Statutes (Right to Farm Act) and s. 163.3162, Florida
Statutes (Agricultural Lands and Practices Act). Pursuant to Section 604,500), Florida Statutes
(General Agricultural Laws), nonresidential farm buildings are subject to LDC Sec. 3.06.00
(flood hazard areas).

4. Parcels of Record. Parcels of record recorded prior to July 10, 1990 shall be vested for the
development of one dwelling unit regardless of the density or intensity of use assigned to that
parcel by this Code. A “parcel of record” is a piece of property duly recorded by plat or deed in
the Official Records of the Clerk of Court, and may include metes and bounds legal descriptions
when such descriptions apply to individual, discreet parcels of land. All dimensional
requirements specified for the zoning district involved must be met to the extent practicable,
except that waterfront lots platted prior to 1990 shall have a rear setback of 25 feet.

County Response: The referenced section does not apply to development order
applications.

OBJECTION 11.

Section 2.05.01 Purpose: The purpose of the Residential — 3 (R-3) district is to provide areas
for a functional and compatible mix of residential dwelling types, and certain limited non-
residential uses of a semi-residential or incidental nature,

County Response: The property is currently zoned Agriculture (AA) with a Future Land
Use Map (FLUM) designation of Agriculture (AG). Single-family detached residential
development is an allowed use in the Agriculture (AA) zoning district and the Agriculture
(AG) Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation.

Section 2.05.03 Location/Designation Guidelines: Lands to be designated as, or re-zoned to,
an R-3 district must be located within the urban development area boundary and have central
water and sewer service currently available. Residential -3 districts must be located within the
High Density Residential or Mixed Use future land use map categories.

County Response: The property is carrently zoned Agriculture (AA) with a Future Land
Use Map (FLUM) designation of Agriculture (AG). Single-family detached residential
development is an allowed use in the Agriculture (AA) zoning district and the Agriculture
(AG) Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation.

11




Section 6.05.03 Protected Trees: Where protected trees are identified on a site proposed for lot
clearing within any residential, commercial or industrial zoning district, the number of trees
which shall be required to be preserved shall be based on a ratio of one (1) tree for each four
thousand three hundred (4,300) square feet of impervious surface area or fraction thereof. The
perimeter and interior landscaped areas required in this ordinance shall be located on the site to
incorporate the preservation of trees, where feasible.

County Response: As specified in Section 6.05.011 Fxemptions: Single family detached and
two-family dwelling units, agricultural and silviculture uses and activifies, and public
utilities are exempt from the provisions of this section of the LDC, single-family detached
units are exempt from landscape requirements.

Section 2.04.02 Intent: The R-2 District is intended to implement and put into regulatory effect
the residential dwelling provisions of the “Medium Density Residential” future land use
category established in the Comprehensive Plan.

County Response: The property is currently zoned Agriculture (AA) with a Future Land
Use Map (FLLUM) designation of Agriculture (AG). Single-family detached residential
development is an allowed use in the Agriculture (AA) zoning district and the Agriculture
(AG) Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation.

6.04.00 PARKING REQUIREMENTS. Off-street parking is required in all zoning districts.
The following off-street parking is required by this chapter:

Section 6.04.01 General Provisions:
1. Area calculations are based on gross square footage.

2. Where the required number of parking spaces results ina fraction, rounding to the next whole
number shall oceur.

3. Where parking spaces are required based on number of employees or students/clients, the
number of employees must reflect the largest shift and the number of students/clients must
reflect the maximum capacity allowed.

4. For multiple land use developments, parking spaces shall be determined upon each different
land use and/or accessory use.

5, With respect to any parking lot that is required to be paved, the number of parking spaces
required may be reduced by one, if the developer provides a bicycle rack or similar device that
offers a secure parking area for each five (5) bicycles.

6. Vehicles from single-family developments are allowed to back onto the street, provided the
street is classified as a minor local street.

County Response: As specified Section 6.04.02 of the LDC, single-family detached home
requires two (2) spaces per dwelling unit, excluding garages.

12



Section 6.06.03 Contents of the Stormwater Management Plan: It is the responsibility of an
applicant to include in the stormwater management plan required by section 6.06.02 sufficient
information for reviewing officials to evaluate the environmental qualities of the affected area,
the potential and predicted impacts of the proposed development activity on affected waters,
and the effectiveness and acceptability of these measures proposed by the applicant for reducing
adverse impacts, The stormwater management plan shall incorporate the following information
and reports:

1. Vicinity Sketch and Legal Description

2. Basin and Sub-basin Boundaries: Including all on-site and off-site areas contributing to the
site, and a breakdown of the subarea(s) contributing to each inlet or conveyance in the internal
stormwater collection system.

3. Topographic Site Data: Showing existing contours and spot elevations. Contours must be
shown to the minimum one (1) foot interval to at least 25 feet outside the project boundaries,
The Engineer of Record must provide the source of such topographic data and certify its
currency.

4. Existing Stormwater Management System Features (ditches, ponds, etc.): Including the
location of areas on the site where surface waters collect and percolate into the ground.

5. Description of all Watercourses, Water Bodies, and Wetlands: Tocations on or adjacent to the
site or into which surface waters flow.

6. Jurisdictional Limits of All On-site Wetland Systems: The jurisdictional wetland limits must
be surveyed and a statement of formal acceptance of the wetland boundaries must be provided
by the regulatory agency(ies) that has jurisdictional authority of the wetlands.

7. Soil Information: Information sufficient to evaluate the performance of proposed facilities,
Soil classification using the United Stateg Department of Agriculture (USDA), Natural Resource
Conservation Service “Soil Survey of Qkaloosa County, Florida” may be utilized as a planning
guide only. Design features shall be supported by a geotechnical report from a lcensed Engineer
or other professional authorized under Florida Statutes to do such work. The repott shall include
all parameters that affect the design and recovery of proposed systems, including all elements
required below,

a. Soil Investigation — Roadways: The soil investigation report shall include:

i. Test borings to a minimum depth of four (4) feet below proposed edge of pavement and

Incorporating a maximum spacing of five hundred (500) feet along the roadway centerline.

ii. Soil boring logs, the existing groundwater table elevation and the estimated seasonal high
groundwater table elevation without consideration of drainage improvements that may lower
the groundwater.

iii. In special cases, additional borings may be required to determine the soil classifications
predominant to the area. 13



b. Soil Tnvestigation — Retention/Detention Areas: The soil investigation report shall include: 1.
A minimum of two (2) test borings per proposed retention/detention facility or two (2) per acre

of proposed retention/detention facility, whichever is greater. Borings shall extend to a minimum
depth of two (2) feet below the proposed pond boftom or to the water table, whichever is greater;

ii. Soil boring logs, the existing groundwater fable clevation, and the estimated seasonal high
groundwater table elevation without consideration of drainage improvements that may lower
the groundwater;

iii. If the analysis of the basin utilizes infiltration to achieve either peak flow attenuation or
recovery time, a hydraulic conductivity test at the proposed bottom of the facility.

8. Flood Zone Designation: Determined from the Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FEMA).
Elevations of the flood zone along with the Flood Hazard boundary shall be delineated.

9, Proposed development layout with horizontal and vertical controls.

10. Proposed Stormwater Management System Features: Including, but not limited to, the
locations of outfall control structures, weirs, inlets, swales, ponds, conveyance systems,
casements, etc.

11. Design Report: Technical narrative and documentation of all drainage calculations.
12. Revisions made to a phased project.

13. Frosion and Sediment Control Plan: A plan specifying in detail the type and location of
control measures, the stage of development at which they will be put into place or used and
provisions for maintenance;

14. Documentation that all runoff leaving the project utilizes a Legal Positive Outfall. -

15. Any other information that the developer or reviewing officials congsider necessary for an
evaluation of the proposed development.

County Response: The Okaloosa County Public Works Department approved the
stormwater management plan for the Buttonbush Meadows Subdivision on November 20,
2025. The proposed development is found to be consistent with Section 1A.02.04, General
Guidelines for Issuing Development Orders and Permits.

Section 2.03.02 Intent: The intent of the R-1 District is to implement and to put into regulatory
effect the provision of the “Low Density Residential” future land use category as established in
the Comprehensive Plan.

County Response: The property is currently zoned Agriculture (AA) with a Future Land
Use Map (FLUM) designation of Agriculture (AG). Single-family detached residential
development is an allowed use in the Agriculture (AA) zoning district and the Agriculture
(AG) Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation.

Section 2.16.00 RESERVED
14



County Response: This reference is to a Section of the LDC is RESERVED,

Section 4.03.03. Definitions. Appendix A of the L.DC includes definitions for mobility fee
specific terms in this ordinance. The Technical Report includes definitions of mobility terms
used in the Report and not in this ordinance.

County Response: The Okaloosa County Public Works Department approved the
Buttonbush Meadows Subdivision on November 20, 2025. The proposed development is
found to be consistent with Section 1A.02.04, General Guidelines for Issuing Development
Orders and Permits.

CONCILUSIONS

1. All applicable development reviews of procedural requirements specified in the LDC have
been met by the Applicant and the County.

2. All required application and site plan information has been submitted by the Applicant in
sufficient adequacy and detail to allow County determination of compliance with the LDC.

3. 'The County conducted a thorough and adequate review based upon the applicable essential
requirements of the LDC and Comprehensive Plan,

4. The County's decision to approve the development order was based upon competent,
substantial evidence,

5. The Petitioner has not met the burden of proving by competent, substantial evidence
that the application for development approval did not meet the essential requirements of
the LDC or Okaloosa County Comprehensive Plan or otherwise adverse to the public
interest.

6. As a matter of law, once an applicant has met the essential elements of the Okaloosa
County Comprehensive Plan and LDC regulations the approving authority is compelled
to approve a development order for permitted use.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Planning Commission consider the facts
presented in this report, as well as any other evidence and testimony that may be presented at
the public hearing, and then provide a recommendation to the Planning Official whether to

approve, remand with conditions, or deny the Development Order Application for Buttonbush
Meadows Subdivision (DO-0625-0014).

ATTACHMENTS:

A — Location Map

B — Aerial Photo

C - Existing Land Use Map

D - Future Land Use and Zoning Maps
E — GIS Analysis

F—Legal Ad
15



EXHIBITS:

1 — Memorandum of Error, December 8, 2025

2 — Overall Site Plan

3 — Agency(s) Approvals

4 — Development Order Sign (public notice) (yellow)
5 — Notice of Intent Sign (public notice) (white)

6 — Development Order Application

7 — Code Enforcement Stop-Work Order

8 - Correspondence

1€



ATTACHMENT - A

25-3N-25-0000-0001 -0030

(L
1111111

SUBJECT PROPERTY

— ’ ]

1

i) it e

by

Legend T e
Roads ety s

Location Map =z

S PemE i'*"II
0 0045 0.09 0.18 0.27 s e iy o
Miles




ATTACHMENT - B

MAP PROJECTION.
Lambon Conformal Conic Prajection
Stateplane: Flotida Narth (0903}

MAD 19831501, NAVD 1998
I:l Parcel Lines pusue pecono:

This map was cresled by Chalsasa

County GIS and is In Iha puble
puruant o Chapler 119,

Flanda Stalules

DISCLAMER:
Ckalossn Caunty haraby sapresly
swclaims any Gahiity lor errors ar
emissiang in hose maps, indeces
of legends,

Map Produced By:
Dkzioosa Counly makss no wasant

expransed or impied, concerming tha accuasy, Okaloosa County GIf
O 0 03?5 D 075 0 225 comploienass of sulability ef (s data B/18/2025
Miles




ATTACHMENT - C

25-3N-25-0000-0001-0030

M
]

|\

SINGLE FA5NGLE FAij!MBERLATMPROVED A |
7.85 9.761 10.1819!IMPROVED AG
[z 905772

1}

|

: SINGLE FAMI i

" =] e

[ ] 0.9996 //

: 0.9999 RLAND 3

[ B B — V77777 7.566442
[__-__j / J'//j 1

SINGLE FAMILY
L 0.999698

\]'l “‘--'_:_::_::;‘w
SINGLE FAMILY -, NO AG ACREAGE
0.999719 L 33278185 |

/ H 27.566442
_________'———___

SINGLE FAMILY J SINGLE FAMILY }

2.738864 5.039829

TR

MAP PROJECTION:

Lamiart Conlormal Cane Projestion
Stateplans: Fiorids Morh (0803)
NAD 19R3(50), NAVD 1988

FUBLIC RECOAD.

This map was craaled by Cialoosa
County GIS and it in Ine publie
domain pursuant s Chapler 115,

Existing Land Use Map s

 geads Map Produced By:
0 0 0 5 O. 1 0.2 0.3 . m:;:mm;?m:“nm Okaloosa County GIS
M| |es comphoinness o Satabity of Inis data. 6182025




ATTACHMENT - D
_25-3N-25-0000-0001-0030

FLU ZNEeend
B Ao .

FLUM & Zoning Map === _°_

Okaloosa County Gl

0 0.0375 0.075 0.15 0.225 et o sy o & 61812025
e — o ee— ]




ATTACHMENTE

GIS ANALYSIS RESULTS

Date: 6/18/2025

Project: 25-3N-25-0000-0001-0030

Permit: DO-0625-0012 - BUTTONBUSH MEADOW

Property Address: LOCATED ON GALLIVER CUT OFF BAKER FL 32531
Zoning: AA

FLU: AG

Fire District: HOLT Commissioner Distriet; 3 Census Tract: 020100

Soil Type: 12 —Lakeland sand - 0 to 5% slope, excessively drained, permeability is rapid, the available water
capacity is very slow, and runoff is slow.

23 —Troup Sand — 0 to 5% slopes, well drained

Wind Zone: GREATER THAN 140 IN THE WIND BORNE DEBRIS

Flood Zone: X 500 Year Flood Plain Map Number: 12051CO 250]
Storm Surge Area; NO

Urban Development Area: NO Water Efficient Area: NQ
Wells: None

Wetlands: Uplands

Water and Sewer: HWS Within 3 mile of an Airport: NO
Environmental Data: None

Historical Data: None



1

1* 1 Apiiblic hearing has been scheduled as follows.

Plarining Commission: 5:01 PM, or as goon thereafter, |
oft March 12, 2026 in the Commission Meeting Roo v

4 .

s e

o et ——

NOTICE OF _

 PUBLIC HEARING |-

"] The Okaloosa County Plannlsig 'Com.ﬁﬁ-fs's'fah"wlil:;hbla a
Public hearlng to consider the following tem:= |

Conslderation of . petition by Benjarit:Plengs, Brian] -

Hermberg, Clayton Harpster, Dominick ;Vicarl, . James
Hecker, Marfanne Vicarl, Michelle -Harpster, Michellg
Wallier, OUR - Soll, Inc., - Sheldon . Harpster, “Tiffany
Matthews, Tracy -Matthews, Victorla ‘Himker, Wesley
Florek, and William Adams. challenging :the : issuarice

Jof a Development Order for Butionbush Meadows

Subdivision, a proposed 22-lot single’ family ditacked

| residentlal subdivision as submitted by 'Cole - Grangér,

PE with Seaside Engineering & Surveying, LLC, agent on
behalf of the applicant, Christépher R, Ryles: The propatty.

| 1s currently zoned Agricuttural (AA) and the Future Land

Use Map (FLUM) designation s’ Agricuttural (AG)). The

property 1s located on the east'side of GalliverCutoff; |’

Baker, Property contalns 26,12 acres more of less. "

1250 North Eglin Pkwy., Shalimar, FL. /.

ALL INTERESTED PERSONS ARE INVITED TO ATTEND
AND BE HEARD REGARDING THIS ACTION.

| The npplication may be Inspected by the public at the
. -| Department of Growth Management offices located -at
.. ;] 1250 N, Eglin Parkway, Sulte 301, Shalimar, FL. 32579 {850}

651-7180 or In the Growth Management offices focated st
402 Brookmeade Dr; Crestview, (850) 6_89;5089. vt

If any person declides to appeal any decision made with
respect to any matter consldered at these hearings, such
person will necd a record of the proceeding ang may
need to ensure that 8 verbatim record of the proceeding Is
made Which record Includes the testimony and evidence

| upon which the appeal s to be based,

Okalgosa County adheres fo the Amercons with
Disabilitles Act and will make reasonable modifications
for access to these heardngs upon request, Requests may
be made to the Growth Manageinent offices described
above and must be made at-least 48 hours In ‘advance

of the hearings [n ordef to provide the requested service,

zs-?u-zs.omm-auoj-oozo

R
! i1 hm\.\-ﬂ“»ﬁ
f) | e
BT R -
e

%

nwidatlynews.com | W'EDNES‘DAY,FEBRUAR}’ 25,2026 | FA

T

T T L I L

=

IS 2T RS ]

a*

13
k]

S

1l

seies ERGIBEEIRRSESE

T LN A b Y3 W e S Y L e e iy e T Y P e e 0wl Ry M o Ty T E P el e e e e re e o e TR B AR B T W M e

ATTACHMENTF

v

Sy v ——



EXHIBIT 1

R PR [T ——

_ anﬁr'trr'mnt gi.f'G.rmyth Managemant
PETITIONFOR DEVELOPMENT ORDER HEARING
% A"'_’ME_MORANDUM'DF ERROR

S ";,;‘Bu_ﬁonb’u_s'h Meadows

sy

S . F . f
corntd thil~ Baker andd sarsnchig aree s

M“’%W“P"e‘ﬁﬁ“g&dwbnf?{f’(/

e e L LT

e Tm e

e

[ %

LR

e |

;

ey

Sl R R L




5 et AT bt ot i .

-_ ;_-_3_-.:'fh_e specific Code requiéérﬁ__éni's 'ahéi_ _pru_\iisicns by citation the Petitianer is |
“ghjecting to, the.reasons why the development 'order'-isl'nbt consistant with the

fdéntified citations, _
A ?

e 2.0 {@4 = Mo st rndl;, ifrastctuge chses il
T e .

ol;}ac’ﬂons:raiséd._iﬁtﬁ‘équititiéﬁt :
‘ Hrocfiire hefere

hohsez it areas |

et R
TSR

SR

.

At

e T R




Department of Growth Management

PETITION FOR DEVELOPMENT ORDER HEARING
MEMORANDUM OF ERROR

Project Description: _ Buttonbush Meadows

File Number: __DO-0626-0014

1. Petitloner Information.

Name: Btlan Hormberg

Authorized agent for; _ Self

Address: 3878 Buclk Ward Rd, Baker, FL, 32531

Talephone: 850-217-3021 EAX:
Emall; _ bhormberg88@gmail.com

2. Statement of Objection. (As stated In the Petifion)

| object to the Issuance of the Davelopment Ordsr because the materlals submitted do riot clearly demonstrate

that the proposed development complies with all applicable provisions of the Okaloosa County Land Developmerit Code,
Comprehenslve Plan and State Statutas. Of particulate concen Is whather the proposed development gualifies for the
densily exception on lands zoned for agricultural use. The proposed development daes not appaar to reflect the
established development pattem in the surrounding area, hor s It compatible with existing rural and agriculfural land uses
in the Immediate area and in the agricuitural distrlct of the county. This development also appears to contribute to
urban sprawl that the county is required ta prevent, There are saveral other concermns the details of which will be
described below in the memorahdum of efror,




3. The specific Code requirements and provisions by citation the Petitioner is
objecting to, the reasons why the development order is not consistent with the
identified citations.

The specific code requitements and provisions that are being objected to and reasons why itis not consistent
are listed on the attached page due to limited space on this page, See attached.

4. Any corrective actions to remecly objections raised in the Petition.

Corective actions are cbvious as they consist of requiring developments to be consistent with the letter and
intent of the law as written in order to protect the people and resources of this county for the welfara of all.
Development Orders should not be approved unless a davelopment actually is conslstent with the letter and
intent of the State Statutes, Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Coda.

Petitioner signature: e %—}@

Pefitioner typed or printed name: Brian G Hormberg

Date : 12182025

Dats received by Growth Management. IL[ E\ L0dE
Received by: Hu_/nu\"lk,}:‘-b/")




3pecific Requirements and Provisions:

1} Developer already committad g slgnificant violation of the LDC by clearing wooded land
for a road without an approved development order.

2) Proposed development does not meat the Purpose of the Agricultural District defined in
LDGC saction 2.01.01.

8) Proposed development does not meetthe Intent for the Agricultural District definad in
L.DC section 2.01.02,

4) Proposed development doss not mest the Parmitted Uses of tand In the Agricultural
District defined in LDC section 2.01.04. Residentlal uses in this district are intended to he
consistent with the purpose and intent ofthe Agrleuttural District and be “very low density”,
The Intent is 1 home per 10 acres with axceptions for 1 acre lots which this development
does not meetths requirement for, The intentis homes on land that further the purpose
and Intent of the Agricultural district and further the Intendad density and land use for that
district. This proposed development would not do that. The Intent for the exceptions to the
Intendad dehsity is for minor infill along existing roads, not unlimited suburban
developmant where the exception becomas the norm, which turns the agriculiural distrist
Into & massive serles of heighborhood developments and testroys lts purpose and
character. Furthermore, Comprehensive Plan Policy 10.1B Rural Community applies here
and the intent of it must be followed, Since this policy Is not specifically explained in the
LDC, the Comprehensive Plan takes precedence as per LD section 1.04.00 Jcope.

5) The Land in this proposed development [s zoned as Agricultural and on Future Land Use
Map as Agriculture and is part of the Agricutturat District, Under LDC section 2.01 04 #82- ‘
Qna-Acre Lots, the condltional requirements must ba metin order to grant the exception'
for One-Acre Lots. The requirements are as follows: 8.b, Access 10 EACH LOT MUST BE
from an EXISTING state or county-maintained roadway. 8.c. EACH LOT created SHALL
HAVE a minimum of 50 feet frontage on SUCH state or county-maintained road. Note the
wording in the LDG such as “MUST” and “SHALL”. in L.DC section 1.08.08 Definitions, the
word “shall” means mandatory. This wording Is not vague and Is not negotiable. Itisa
mandatory requiremen‘t in ordet to qualify for the exception. This proposed developmant
does not quallfy. There was factually no road that existed at the time of development order
application or at time of Intant to a pprove the development order that the proposed lots
would have access from or have frontage on. There is certainly and factually no existing
county or state-maintained road that each lot would have access from or 50 feet of
frontage on. The developer Intends to build a road, which Is a proposed road, which each
ot would have access from and frontage on. Therefors, the subject property in this
development.order application does not qualify for the 1 acre lot size exception. The road
that the proposed lots will front on is & proposed road and thus cannot ba considered an



existing road by any reasonabte interpretation of the word. The development cannot
exceed the required 1 home per 10 acres density. Itisalso important to note LDGC section
1.03.00 Scope where all development SHALL BE permitted in accordance with this Code...
and if there is an inconsistency, between provisions, THE MORE RESTRICTIVE SHALL
GOVERN. If there Is a conflict batween a more general requirement and a more specific
requirsment, the MORE SPECIFIC SHALL GOVERN. If there is a conflict or inconsistency
between the Code and the Comprehensive Plan, the Comprehensive Plan SHALL
CONTROL. Strict adherence to the law must apply and must be enforced by the county.

8) Proposed development does notreflect the established development pattern of the
surrounding area. The established development pattern in the surrounding area is very low
density, agricultural and rural type uses. There is one neighborhood across the road from
this proposed development that is of similar density and use, but it also is not consistent
with the Comprehensiva Plan and LDG intent. 2.1 Future Land Use, Objective 4 on page
2.1.5. Also, Florida Statutes Chapter 163 Growth Potlicy and Land Development Regulation
applies.

7) Proposed development does not reflect development compatible with the surrounding
rural and agricultural land uses, Suburban neighborhoods are not the intent ofthe
Agricuttural district and are not simitar to or compatible with the predominantly agricultural
uses in the immediate surrounding area. 2.1 Future Land Use, Objective 4 on page 2.1.5.
Also, Florida Statutes Chapter 163 Growth Policy and Land Development Regulation
applies.

8) The proposed developmant in an example of Urban Sprawl for which the County
Comprehensive Plan has stated Intent, goals and obJectives to actively prevent. While
Urban Sprawl prevention is not specifically covered in the LDC, the relationship hetween
the LDC and the Comprehensive Plan and the Superiority of the Comprehensive Plan to the
LDC is made clear in LDC sections 1.02.00 Purpose and Intent, therafore the
Comprehensive Plan applies. Preventing Urban Sprawl iz addressed in the Comprehensive
Plan Sactions 2.1 Future Land Use, Introduction, Florida Statute Chapter 168.3177(6)(a)
minimum requirements (e) page 2.1.1, 2.1 Future Land Use, Objective 4 on page 2,1.5,
Objective 9 on pages 2.1,9-2.1.11.



Department of Growth Management

PETITIONFOR DEVELOPMENT ORDER HEARING
MEMORANDUM OF ERROR

Project Description: Buttonbush Meadows

File Number: _ P0-0625-0014 S

1. Petitioner Information.
Nama; Clayton Harpster
Self

Autharized agent for:
Addrass: 1801 Harpster Ln,, Baker, FL 32531

Telaptione: __ 850-826-2373 FAX:

Emall:__ clayfonfishing850@gmail.com
2. 8tatement of Objection. (As stated in the Petition)

Fiary absfeeting. to issuane of (e Bavelopmert Sl bosuse, Based of Iny reskaw
oof the appiivatho wetoraly, technival reparts, and polatad peymils, | belipva tha
proapteed devalopniant may et s Blly oonsistant with spplleabie pravigions of tia
Ukalooen County Land Development Cody, My conearns inelide potental errore or
ingemsistenobis In atormwiber desh sssuraptions, soll suitabifily, poraglaiion
copagity; and dedlnsge impaets b gurroursling prapertios, 28 wall 48 th L T
thie praposed sformwater smanigement systam oveeall, | o slso soncermed fthat tha
exfating roadty nelwork and supporting pebiis Infrastructung Prfaye byis Tinsifds amnﬁ ¥
safoly ar sffostively sacanmivodate the tnovansed tratite, agcsse dermards, and -
mervicy nowds gonsrated by ths propased subdivision, These Issues, combiriad with
i possibility tht the Noticw of Infent rolled gy infomtion that doss Aok Rty reflact
mekual sife nondiions of demenstrate aormpilance with alf reyuired Gods wtitaria, -
weaTrant & Devslopment Ordor Heurng to snsure the proposal mueotz ol appleakip
ragulations. bafisre sny spproval Ig finafizad, '




iy ia e

-1':"\}’:'1_@13.{,&(53:?;1%5‘{};#? _

ORT |

s

i

FEEaE




Error 1 — Lot Sizes Do Not Meet Minimum Requirements Because the Applicant s
Improperly Claiming a Non-Existent Road as “Existing”
Code Citations:
« LDC Article 2 — Lot & Density Requirements for Rural Districts
+ LDC 1A.03.03 — Development Order Required for Platting, Roads & Infrastructure
« LDC 7.01.03 — Adequacy of Public Facilities
Issue: : :
The applicant proposes lots smaller than 10 acres by claiming they front an “existing
road,”
However, this road hag not been built, is not open to the public, is not functioning as a
roadway, and therefore legally cannot be considered an existing road for the purpose of
reducing minimum lot size requirements.
Why This Is an Error: ~
Okaloosa County LDC allows density reductions only when lots front an already-existing,
legally established, publicly accessible road.
A road drawn on a plan but not constructed does not qualify,
By relying on a non-existent road, the Development Qrder approves lot sizes that are
helow the minimum allowed, violating multiple sections of the LDC.
Impact:
The entlre subdivision layout, lot legality, and DO approval are based on a false premise,
making the Development Order inconsistent with the Land Development Code.
Error 2 — Stormwater Design May Not Meet LDC Requirements Due to Soil Unsuitability,
Percolation Limitations & Uncertain System Performance
Code Citations:
» LDC Section 6.06.101 — Retention System Requirements & 72-Hour Recovery Rule
+ LDC 6.06.201 — Protection of Adjacent Properties From Increased Runoff
Issue:
The stormwater system relies on a deep vertical sand chimney because the first 23-34
feet of native soils were found to be low-permeability silty sands, unsuitable for normal
dry retention.
This condition forced the engineering team to design a non-typical infiltration system
penetrating deep into subsurface layers to reach permeable soils.
Why This Is an Error:
The Land Development Code requires stormwater systems to perform reliably under
actual conditions, including seasonal groundwater levels, compaction, vegetation
removal, and long-terin maintenance,
The modeling provided does hot fully address:
groundwater mounding
pond recovery under wet-season conditions
performance after illegal clearing disturbed pre-development soil conditions
lateral migration of stormwater toward adjacent parcels



The DO approval therefore lacks sufficient evidence of stormwater compliance.
Error 3 — Drainage Impacts to Surrounding Properties Not Fully Analyzed or Mitigated
Code Citations:
« LDC 6.06.010 — Prevention of Adverse Offsite Impacts
. LDC 6.06.201 — Protection of Adjacent Larids
Issue:
The applicant asserts zero discharge, but no analysis was provided for:
+ lateral groundwater spread
« saturated flow impacts
« emergency overflow behavior
« infiltration bypass during heavy storm events
Why This Is an Error:
The LDC prohibits development from increasing runoff onto neighboring parcels.
Without a full hydraulic impact review, the County cannot confirm that the system will
protect nearby homes or properties.
Error 4 — Hlegal Clearing Before DO Issuance Violated LDC Requirements &
Compromised Site Conditions
Code Citations: .
« LDC 1A.03.03 — DO Required Before Clearing or Land Disturbance -
» LDC 1.41.08 — Procedural Compliance Required : :
lasue:
A stop-work order was Issued because the applicant cleared the property prior to -
Development Order approval, in direct violation of County requirements.
Why This s an Errof:
‘Iegal clearing:
. Disturbed natural soil profiles used in the engineering calculations.
. Altered stormwater infiltration, runoff, and flow pathways.
« Removed vegetative cover that slows and filters runoff.
« Deimonstrates disregard for the permitting process, ralsing concerns about
compliance with more complex DO conditions.
The DO approval does not address or remedy this violation. )
Error 5 — Roadway Network & Public Infrastructure Capacity Were Not Properly
Evaluated
Code Citations:
« LDC 7.01.03 — Adequacy of Public Facilities {Concurrency)
« LDC Article 11 — Trafflc & Access Requirements



Issue:
Galliver Cutoff and Keyser Mill Road are narrow rural roads without shoulders, turn
lanes, pedestrian facilities, or capacity upgrades.
No traffic study or concurrency analysis was included for:
22 new homes
increased daily trips
construction traffic
emergency vehicle access
school bus routing impacts
Why This Is an Error:
The LDC requires a demonstration that existing public facilities can safely and
efficiently serve the proposed development.
Error 6 — DO Approval Lacks Clear Demonstration of Comprehensive Plan
Consistency '
Code Citations:
o LDC 1.05.00 — Required Consistency with Comprehensive Plan Policies
Issue:
The DO does not show compliance with policies related to:
« rural character preservation
« stormwater resource protection
« public safety
« responsible infrastructure planning
Why This Is an Error;
Every DO must affirmatively prove Comprahensive Plan consistency, not assume it.

-]



4. Corrective Actions Needed to Remedy the Errors
The Petitioner respectfully requests that the County require the following
corrective actions before approval of the Development Order:
1. Redquire a legally accurate lot-size and road frontage evaluation using only
existing, constructed, functioning public roads.

2. If the road does not exist, sub-10-acre lots cannot be approved.
3. Require revised stormwater modeling and analysis reflecting:
o actual post-clearing conditions
o seasonal groundwater highs
o hydraulic mounding effects
o soll compaction after illegal clearing
o vegetative removal impacts

Q

long-term infiltration performance of the sand chimney system
4. Require a full drainage impact study demonstrating zero adverse effects to
neighboring properties.

5. Require corrective action and restoration for the illegal clearing, including
soil rehabilitation and erosion control measures.

6. Require a traffic and Infrastructure capacity analysis addressing safety,

access, emergency response, and concurrency compliance.
7. Require independent third-party inspections for all stormwater components,
especially the sand chimney excavation and installation.

8. Delay or condition the DO approval until all errors are resolved and the

proposal demonstrates full compliance with all applicable LDC and
Comprehensive Plan requirements.



Depatimant of Growth Management

PETITIONFOR DEVELOPMENT ORDER HEARING
MEMORANDUM OF ERROR

Profect Description: Buttonbush Meadows

File Numher: _ P0-0625-0014

1. Petitionar Information.
Name: Q@W!H)Qk— Vaf('/ﬂ(fﬂf

Authatized agent for:

— Y XY, nCYy. Cf%/ﬂ; t..,/'%f{pp £ A883/
Telephons?gﬁwﬂzl"/ 763 sax

Emall:

2, Btatement of Objection. (As stated In the Petltion)

No OX st e Load
20 nd e m&m%w,mwé




4 4. The spacific Code requir

¢
ements and provisions by citation the Petitioner is
onsistent with the

ohjecting to, the reasons why the development order isnot ¢

jdentified citations.

Cpad was 10K ;“37/1«35,

2.0 A

o remedy objections raised in the Petition.

4. Any vorrective actions t

Petitioner signature: ___ .

/ _
/ Lpmirnee e l/J et

Petitioner typed of printed name:

Dete : )3?/@/&3/ -

1 \?(JO-'LE .

Dats recelved by Growih Managetment:

Recelved by: ___¥h 0 v S Lg_.gé




Department of Growtl Managemant

PETITIONFOR DEVELOPMENT ORDER HEARING
MEMORANDUM OF ERROR

Project Description: Buttonbush Meadows

File Number:  P0-0625-0014

1. Petftionar Information,

Name:_~IAMES JE. HECKER.

Authorlzed agent for: /lf / ;‘fi}

Ndress:___~3 P66 SLEYVSEL  MNAL /QA, ,5'4/6’!:1/62 F”{“
Telephone:( 5:25”@ ‘5’#.3@ N @{J{I%fx /M/ 74 i 4 7 aaid ,
Emall: _ /‘:/'M/i eeRer ';2 @:f{/’?@;Za C.6 A

2. Btatement of Ob)ection. (As stated in the Petitlon)
O ESTABL, SED RPAD »




3. The specific Code requirements and provisions by citation the Petitioner is
objecting to, fhe reasons why the development order is not consistent with the

identified citations. 2. (7 /, 0%  THE AAN A /s
St TABLE  FoR GENERAL AG[CULTHEE
RArh sp)out Vel BE LCoNSIAEReED Fo R
Qo 5s 06 DEVELD PMENT Fop REASONS oF
P ‘jA/jJE/Q'K/QﬁDﬂJj o1l 7H26 R eIl |
Al pPpBel/es SN TEREST

4. Any corrective actions to remedy objections raised In the Petition.

FoNING pasT BE @Hﬂﬁ/é‘&‘b/ M A ,f’-.')ai«A/?y
PNpbeorcd RoAL M nsST BE Bulsd

Patltioner signature: Q 2 VVILAD /é ! /d“"'“‘é‘\d,

Pefitioner typed or printed name: _~fA /M ES K. AECfER
Date ; /{/5}/ 28

Date recsivad by Growth Management: bod (Q [Qn ik
Received by VAL ph ol Mé,a




Department of Growth Management

PETITIONFOR DEVELOPMENT ORDER HEARING
MEMOCRANDUM OF ERROR

Project Desoription: _ Buttonbush Meadows

File Number: DO-0625-0014

1. Petitionet Information.
Meme: m ]@Qxﬁﬁ)ﬂ }‘]E Zﬁ \/I C/f.Lr’Z%T*

Authorlzed agent for:

Address: UQ@? ;‘4‘5 ) e ,é ﬁéé Ew (/ / 7& mﬁ//@f’\ /“'
Telaphone: §SUS T -] 2o & rax: DA/
emate_M 2V e [AD (G Qﬁ«}ﬂm;’/a CoM

2. Statement of Objection. (As stated in the Petition)

o wporting one/
/_;D*\,ch A Pﬂ\cﬂ et (&étd‘ﬁwg@'ﬁ




3. The specific Code requirements and provislens by citation the Petitioner is
ohjecting to, the reasons why the development order is not consistent with the
{dentified citations.

Cotrd voga M0 + QM‘U#%

_0.010Y

4. Any corrective actions to remedy objections raised in the Petition,

/ 5 v -
Petitionar signaturs: m Ot Bond (Q V ¢ CexAAs

Pefitianer typed or printed name: ‘mmﬁyﬂn T s
Date ; I 9\/(&{/@ 54

Date recelved by Growth Management: ‘:bl ¥ \Mai‘i
Received by: VR d.0 P M




Department of Growth Management

PETITIONFOR DEVELOPMENT ORDER HEARING
MEMORANDUM OF ERROR

Project Description: Buttonbush Meadows

File Numbar: PO-0625-0014

1. Petitioner [nformation.
Name: Michelle Harpster
Self

Authorlzed agant for:
Address: 1801 Harpster Ln., Baker, FL 32531

Telaphone: ___ 850-826-1973 FAX:

Ernall: harpsterd@hotmail.com

2, Statement of Objection. (As stated in the Petition)

F e olifrating Yo lasuarod of the Develuprent Drder botauso, bnsed o 11y reviaw
o ther application tatotlale, technloal reporty, and mlated permils, | holieve e
proposed déveloprent miay not T fully consistent with spplicable provisions of the
Cibrlosen Govty Lo Desvelopmyent Soe, My coneerns fnclude pobemiia] arrore o
inconaistenchas ingtermwatey dosfyn assumptlons, sl suitability, porcaiation
eapavity, and deainsge impasks to siepowsding prapertiss, o well o the adoguaey of
the proposed stimvwatir wrnsgentent system ovaradl. | ain also cengemed that fhe
exlating roadway nelwetk and supporing polilio infrastrustute msy be dnatiffialent b
sately ar affectively soeommadaie the inoreased tralfie, access demands, and
serviey nids gonerated by the proposed suldivlslon, Thess issues, combinad with
e pogsibility thet the Notien of leteed pollod o ioomation that doss not flly reflact
actual site: ponditions o demornstrate sotmpllanes with dil rotuived Code oeitaria,
waarrant a Davelopmant Ordur Beardng bo casurs the groposal noots o¥ applicable
regulationg befoers any approval s foallzed,




3. The speciic Code requirements and provisions by citation the Petitioner is
ohjecting to, the reasons why the development order is not congistent with the
identified citatlons.

Seas Attached

4. Any corrective actions to remedy objections raised In the Petition.

Sae Attached

Potitioner signatura‘k)h\‘.\nh\ IVQ DL\\\()\AAD&M

\
Petitioner typed or pinted name: N\‘\ﬂ,\J\_ﬂ;\\ 4 \:\‘M' ll{)"’%j(ﬂ/(
Date 1 H‘\QJ\ Q’j/

Date fecelved by Growih Management: _ﬂ_\&,( 74 lg b

Recalvad by: VAL o My
>




1. Development Commencing Prior to Issuance of a Development Order
LDC § 2.05.01(A)
(No development may begin until a Development Order has been issued.)
2. Required Environmental / Natural Resource Review Prior fo Land Disturbance
LDC § 2.05.03(A)
(Environmental review required as part of development approval.)
LDC § 6.05.03(A)
(Development must not create adverse drainage, sroslon, or environmental impacts.)
LDC § 6.05.03(D)
(Requires preservation of natural vegetation where needed for stormwater and
erosion control,)
3. Public Facilities Adequacy — Roads Must Exist and Meet Standards
LDC § 2.04.02(B){4)
(Development Orders may only be issued if public facilities, including roads, are
adequate fo serve the development at the adopted leve! of service,)
LDC §§ 6.04.01-6.04.03 .
{Subdivision access roads must exist, be constructed to County stahdards, and
support safe Ingress/egress and emergency vehicle acecess.)
4. Zoning District Standards and Density Compliance
LDC § 2.04.02(B){2)
{Development Orders must comply with the Comprehensive Plan and zoning district
standards.)
LDEC Chapter 5 ~ Zoning District Regulations
{Establishes the density, dimensional, and access standards for each zoning
district.)
5. Stormwater, Sofl, and Drainage Evaluation Reguirements
LDC § 6.06.03
(Stormwater plans must Include accurate soils, topography, drainage patterns, and -
required technical data.)
LDC § 6.05.03(A)
{Development raust not create adverse drainage lmpacts on adjacent properties.)
LDC § 2.04.02(B)(1)
(Development applications must include complete, accurate, and reliable technica)
documentation,)
6. Emergency Services and 911 Access Requirements
LDC § 2.04.02(B)(4)
{Pubiic services—including fire, EMS, and 911 access—must be atlequate at the time
of DO approval.)
LDC § 6.04.03(A)
{Access roads must support emergency vehicle load and provide reliable
ingress/egress.)
7. Accuracy and Completeness of Application Materials
LDC § 2.04.02(B}{1)
{All application documents must be complete, accurate, and reliable.)



Corrective Action 1 — Require the Applicant to Use Only a Legally Existing Road for
Density and Lot Size Calculations
To remedy the Error regarding lof size and density:
The Gounty must require the applicant to base all ot size calculations on a road that
physically exists, is constructed, and is open to public use, consistent with LDC roadway
access standards.
If no such road exists, the subdivision must be redesigned to comply with the zoning
district’s minimum lot size requirements without density reductions. o
The Development Order must be revised or rasubmitted using accurate loi-size and
density determinations consistent with the LDC. y
Corrective Action 2 — Reguire a Revised Stormwater Management Plan That Meets LDC
Technical Standards
To remedy the stormwater design defictencies: '
The applicant must submit a complete stormwater management plan that complies with,
LDC §6.06.03 and related stormwater performance standards. S
The plan must include:
verified soil parameters and Infiltration rates,
evaluation of seasonal high groundwater,
analysis of system performance under actual site conditions,
compliance with adjacent property protection standards.
Any unconventional stormwater design elements {such as a deep infiltration chimney)
must include supporting technical documentation demonstrating compliance with LDG
requirements.
The County must ensure the revised stormwater plan meets all LDC technical criteria
before issuance or reaffirmation of the Development Order.
Corrective Action 3 — Require Compliance With All pre-Devalopment Procedures Before
Construction or Clearing Gontinues
To address issues refated to activity occurring before DO approval:
The Gounty must recuire the applicant to fully comply with all pre-development
requirements In LDC §2.05.01 before any additional work proceeds.
If the property was cleared prematurely, the County must require;
a corrective environmental evaluation,
documentation of existing site conditions after clearing,
and restoration measures §f required by the LDG.
Gorrective Action 4 — Raquire Verification That Public Facilitles and Emergency Access
Meet LDC Standards
The applicant must demonstrate that roadways, emergency access, and public services
meet the adequacy requirements of LBG §2.04,02(B){4) and Chapter 6 roadway standards.
If emergency access cannot be verified due to the absence of a functional road, the
Development Order must be withheld until compliance is achieved.
Corrective Action 5 — Require Correction of Any Incomplete or Inaccurate Application
Materials
The applicant must correct all deficlencies in the applicafion inconsistent with LDC
§2.04.02(B)(1) requiring complete, accurate, and reliable documentation.
Arevised and complete set of documents must be provided hefore the DO can be lawfully
issued or upheld.



. — -um‘

R

Departrent of Growth Management

PETITIONFOR DEVELOPMENT ORDER HEARING
MEMORANDUM OF ERROR

Project Description: Butfonbush Meadows

File Number: DO-0625-0014

1. Petifioner Information.

Name: % CAA (l/fﬁ /r%f"

Authorized agent for: 4 éz

Addresa: S/o% &mfﬂ per~ C77 D /6&@/\/5// ‘

RLE B

Telephone: f ‘Bb’dﬁ%ﬂ —IBIY  FAX:
Emali . 4d »1, ¢4m/:@”/@9 /4»«:; o O,

2. Btatement of Objection, (As stated in the Pstition)

2:01-0%
- Ao 6%:5717 s

- Zav-ec;é /4}5? - r‘?ﬁ’% C’O'M/dﬁt)(-'uézﬁ_
Kor 5 0bdiysie1

- 00(:‘,5 )7374“ 5W‘ar~7/" @W"ﬂ“"”%“_
/.:7 74‘::(67%0%7/"6—




3. The specific Gade requiremnents and provisions by citation the Petitioner is
objecting to, the reasons why the development order [s not consistent with the
identified cifations. '

L.0/.0D %,ﬂ-'gi&ﬂ/v‘wm ,ﬂ,’ﬁ‘mu-///

8087 - e @.p0)Hta m&ﬁ PRy 7/4@?5‘)@74/.»—&
- /7&'7L g@m/tf?a.?&;'é’/-e_ ,r';? /4)4 (/mmq,()
£t et

4. Any corrective actions to remedy objections raised in the Petition.
Sl Padiags 1 Z sk e
57@4/7/ L e /aﬁﬁi 534//% /4,;»
- :.Z—.ﬂj_‘;'[eape .974 /éfi};’f/@ C Jf"-'lﬁﬂb;fs.*“’“f?ﬁ
5@ aror «?aéy A O 7 /5@3@” - —f;/cﬂo

/) 2. Cﬂﬂﬂ/ﬁ?/&/@}ﬁjﬂf /AM % r

%7'7%"* 4{ x/e—/ 2% 2 1.
Lo S e endl proper-

Pefitioner signature: %{ % ﬁéz\————‘/
Petitioner typed or printed/hame: W /'e-ﬂ/ oo ég;’g [
Date © / oL// }/25’/

Date recelved by Growth Management: IQ.JI 8 ! w2005

Recelved by! Ma’\?:_ﬂ\ﬁ
-




Department of Growth Managsement

PETITION FOR DEVELOPMENT ORDER HEARING
MEMORANDUM OF ERROR

Project Description: _ Butfonbush Meadows

File Number:  DO-0625-0014

1. Petitioner Information.

Mame: Brian Hormberg

Authorized agent for; _OUR SOIL, Inc.

Addrese; _ 6578 Buck Ward Rd, Baker, FL 32531
Telephone; _860-B18-0849 EAX:

Emall:  oursailokaloosa@gimall.com

2, Statement of Objection. (As stated In the Petition)

DUR SOW. objects to the lasyanoce of the Davelopment Order because the materials submitted do not clearly demonstrate
that the proposed development complies with all applicable provisions of the Okaloosa County Land Devalopment Code,
Gomprehensive Plan and State Statutes. Of particulate concern is whether the proposed development qualifies for the
denslty exception on lands zoned for agricultural use. The proposed development does not appear to reflect the
astablished development pattem in the surrounding area, nor Is It compatible with exlsting rural and agricuttural land uses
in the immediate area and in the agricuitural district of the county. This development also appears to contribute to
urpan sprawl that the county Is required to prevent. There are several other congerns the detalls of which wil| be
described below in the memorandum of etror,




3. The specific Code requirements and provislons by citation the Pefitloner is

ohjecting to, the reasons why the development order is not consistent with the
identified citations.

The specific code requirements and provisions that are being ohjected to and reasans why itis not consistent
are llsted on the attached page due to limited space on this page. See attached.

4. Any corractive actions to remedy objections raised In the Petition.

Gorrectlve actions are obvious as they consist of requiring developments to be consistent with the letter and
intent of the law as written in order to protect the people and resources of this county for the welfare of ali.
Development Orders ehould not be approved unless B tevelopment actually is consistent with the letter and
Intent of the State Statutes, Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Cade,

Petitioner sighature: %ﬁw—/ - W

Petitioner typed or printed name: Brian G Hormberg

Date : 121812026

Date received by Growth Management: l.:z,l e l RAN] Y

Recelved by: ,___w«““@/"‘




Specific Requirements and Provisions:

1) Daveloper already committed a significant violation of the LDC by clearing wooded land
for a road without an approved development order.

2) Proposed davelopment doas not meat the Purpose of the Agricultural Distrlct defined in
LDC section 2.01.01,

3) Proposed development does not meet the Intent for the Agricultural District deflnad In
LDGC section 2.01.02. .

4) Proposed development does not meet tha Permitted Uses of tand in tha Agricultural
Distrlct defined in LDC section 2.01.04. Resideritial uses in this district are Intended to be
consistent with the purpose and intent of the Agricultural Distrlct and be “very low density”,
Theintentia 1 home per 10 acres with exceptlons for 1 acre tots which this development
does not meet the requirement for. The intent!s homes on land that further the purpose
and intent of the Agricultural district and further the intended density and land use for that
district. This proposed development would not do that. The intent for the exceptiods to the
intended density is for minor infill along existing roads, not unlimited suburban
development where the exception becomes the norm, which turns the agriculturat district
Into & massive series of neighborhood developments and destroys its purpose and
character, Furthermore, Comprehensive Plan Policy 10,18 Rural Community applies here
and the intent of it must be followed. Since this policy s not spectfically explained in the
LDG, the Cormprehensive Plan takes precedance as per LDC saction 1.03.00 Scope.

5) The Land in this proposed development is zoned as Agricultural and on Future Land Use
Map as Agriculture and is part of the Agricultural District. Under LDC section 2.01.04 #8.
Qne-Acre Lots, the conditional requirements must be met in order to grant the exception
for One-Acre Lots. The requirements are as follows: 8.1, Access to EACH LOT MUST BE
from an EXISTING state or county-maintained roadway. 8.c. EACH LOT created SHALL
HAVE a minimum of 50 feet frontage on SUCH state or county-maintalned road. Notethe
wording In the LDC such as “MUST” and “SHALL”. In LDC sectlon 1.08.06 Definitlons, the
word “shall” means mandatory. This wording is hotvague and is not nagotiable. ltisa
mandatory requlremeﬁt in orderto qualify for the exception. This proposed developmaent
does not qualify. There was factually no road that existed at the time of development arder
application or at tima of intent to approve the development order that the proposed lots
would have access from or have frontage on. There is certainly and factually no existing
county or state-maintained road that each tot would have access from or B0 feet of
frontage on. The developer intends to build a road, which is a proposed road, which each _
lot would have access from and frontage on. Therefote, the subject property In this
development order application does hot qualify for the 1 acre lot size exception. The road
that the proposed lots wilt front on Is a proposed road and thus cannot ba consldered an



existing road by any reasanable Interpretation of the word, The development cannot
exceed the required 1 home per 10 acres density. [tis also Important to note LDC section
1.03.00 Scope where all development SHALL BE permitted in accordance with this Code...
and ifthereis an‘inconsistency, hetween provisions, THE MORE RESTRICTIVE SHALL
GOVERN. If there is a conflict betwsen a more general requirement and a mors specific
requirament, the MORE SPECIFIC SHALL GOVERN. If thera s a conflict or inconsistency
batweeri the Code and the Comprehensive Plan, the Comprehensive Plan SHALL
CONTROL, Strict adherence to the law must apply and must be enforced by the county.

6) Praposed development does not reflect the gstablished developmant pattern of the
surrounding area. The established development pattern in the surrounding area is very low
density, agricultural and rural type uses, Thereis ona nefghborhood across the road from
this proposed development that Is of similar density and use, but it also is not consistent
with the Comprehensive Plan and LDG intent. 2,1 Future Land Use, Objective 4 on page
2.1.5. Also, Florida Statutes Chapter 163 Growth Policy and Land Development Regulation
applies. :

7) Proposed development dees not reflect development compatible with the surrounding
rural and agricuttural land uses. Suburbari nalghborhoods are not the intent of the
Agricultural district and are not simitar to or corrpatible with the predominantly agricultural
uses in the immediate surrounding area. 2.1 Future Land Use, Objective 4 on page 2.1.5.
Also, Florida Statutes Chapter 163 Growth Policy and La nd Development Regulation
applies.

8) The proposed development in an example of Urban Sprawt for which the County
Comprehensive Plan has stated intent, goals and ahjectivas to actively prevent. While
Urban Sprawl prevention is not specifically coverad in the LDC, the relationship between
the LDC and the Comprehensive Plan and the Superiority of the Comprehensive Plan to the
LOG Is made clear in LDC sections 1.02.00 Purpose and Intent, therefore the

" Comprehsnsive Plan applias. Preventing Urban Sprawl Is addressed in the Comprehensive
Plan Sections 2.1 Future Land Use, Introduction, Florlda Statute Chapter 163.3177(6)(a)
minimum requlrements (e} page 2.1, 2.1 Future Land Use, Objective 4 on page 2.1.5,
Objective 9 on pages 2.1.8 - 2.1.11.



Deapartment of Growth Managemant

PETITIONFOR DEVELOPMENT ORDER HEARING
MEMORANDUM OF ERROR

Project Description: Buttonbush Meadows

File Number:  DO-0825-0014

1. Petitioner Information.
Namia: Sheldon Harpster
Self

Authorlzed agent for:
Address; 1801 Harpster Ln., Baker, FL 32531

Tolephone: ___ 850-826~1972 FAX:

Emall; harpster_s@hotmail.com

2. statement of Objectlion, (As stated In the Petitlon)

Fan abjecting to issuanie of the Bevelspment Order bocmise, Bogod ob my revizw
of the apeliaation miaterlals, eehinleat reporbs, and wlated normits, | believe tha
prapuzed developrent may tot e illy oonstatant with applicabile provisions of the
Cikslerens Sonstinty o Devalopment Soda, By comesrs nchtde pofential arrorg op
Ineonsistencies n stormmrater dosign awsumptions, soll sultablily, porcolation
aapaeity, and desinage impasts b sucesinding propertion, as wall ne Wi adoguaey of
The proposed stonvwstot manngament aystem overall, [ ain also coneemead that the
xbeting roadway nebwork, aud supporting pobife infeastiustu g rigy bo Insnfficient tn
safely o affosthvoly goomrmadate the inonarsed traffle, sccess demands, ard
sEraiid fowds gonarated by the proposed subdivisinn, These Isstes, comibined with
thit poaalbility thet the Notide of Intent reilath on Infemition that dows st fully reflact
actual site ponditivns of danonstiate compliance with ol mguired Gode criteria,
wearrant & Developient Ordar Haarding to edsure the geeposal moots ol spplloable
rogulations before any appraval Ig finatized,




and provisions by citation the Petitioner is

3. The specific Code requirements
evelopment order Is fot consistent with the

ohjecting to, the reasans why the d
identified eitations,

Gee Attached

4. Any corrective actions to remedy objections raised in the Petition.

Saee Altached

Patitioner signature: A follee q‘|rma{)85@”“ ,

Patitioner typad or ptinted narme: Shelden ]C\‘&.{‘via"‘%{ﬁ,r
Date: 2. Dee 2025

Date recelved by Growth Management: la’l.»lg 802G

Recsived by: yILL. amm?ﬁ




Error 1 — Lot Sizes Do Not Meet Minimum Requirements Because the Applicant Is
Improperly Claiming a Non-Existent Road as “Existing”
Code Citations:

» LDC Article 2 — Lot & Density Requirements for Rural Districts .

« LDC 1A.03.03 — Development Order Required for Platting, Roads & Infrastructure

» LDC 7.01.03 — Adequacy of Public Facilities
lssue: .
The applicant proposes lots smaller than 10 acres by slaiming they front an “existing
road.”
However, this road has not heen built, is not open to the public, is not functioning as a
roadway, and therefore legally cannot he considersd an existing road for the purpose of
reducing minimum lot size requirements.
Why This is an Error:
Okaloosa County LDC allows density reductions only when lots front an already-existing,
legally established, publicly accessible road.
A road drawn onh a plan but not constructed does not qualify.
By relying on a non-existent road, the Development Order approves lot sizes that are
below the minimum allowed, violating multiple sections of the LDC.
Impact:
The entire subdivision layout, lot legality, and DO approval are based on a false premise,
making the Development Order inconsistent with the Land Development Code,
Error 2 — Stormwater Design May Not Meet LDC Requirements Due to Soit Unsuitability,
Percolation Limitations & Uncertain System Performance
Code Citations:

+ LDC Section 6.06.101 — Retention System Requirements & 72-Hour Recovery Rule

« LDC 6.06.201 — Protection of Adjacent Properties From Increased Runoff
Issue:
The stormwater system relies on a deep vertical sand chimney because the first 23-31
feet of native soils were found fo be low-permeability silty sands, unsuitable for normal
dry retention,
This condition forced the engineering team to design a non-typical infiltration system
penetrating deep into subsurface layers to reach permeable soils.
Why This Is an Error: _
The Land Development Code requires stormwater systems to perform reliably under
actual condltions, including seasonal groundwater levels, compaction, vegetation
removal, and long-term maintenance,
The modeling provided does not fully address:

 groundwater mounding

» pond recovery under wet-season conditions

« performance after illegal clearing disturbed pre-development soil conditions

« lateral migration of stormwater toward adjacent parcels



The DO approval therefore lacks sufficient evidence of stormwater compliance.
Error 3 — Drainage Impacts to Surrounding Properties Not Fully Analyzed or Mitigated
Code Citations:
« LDC 6.06.010 — Prevention of Adverse Offsite Impacts
e LDC 6.06.201 — Protection of Adjacent Lands
Issue:
The applicant asserts zero discharge, but no analysis was provided for:
« lateral groundwater spread
« saturated flow impacts
« emergency overflow behavior
» infiltration bypass during heavy storm events
Why This Is an Error:
The LDC prohibits development from increasing runoff onto neighboring parcels..
Without a full hydraulic impact review, the County cannot confirm that the systemn will
protect nearby homes or properties.
Error 4 — legal Clearing Before DO Issuance Violated LDC Requirements &
Compromised Site Conditions
Code Citations:
o LDC 1A.03.03 — DO Required Before Clearing or Land Disturbance
. LDC 1.11.08 — Procedural Compliance Required
lssue:
A stop-work order was issued because the applicant cleared the property prior to”
Development Order approval, in direct violation of County requirements.
Why This Is an Error:
Wegal clearing:
« Disturbed natural soil profiles used in the engineering calculations.
« Altered stormwater infiltration, runoff, and flow pathways.
. Removed vegetative cover that slows and filters ru noff.
« Demonstrates disregard for the permitting process, raising concerns about
compliance with more complex DO conditions.
The DO approval does not address or remedy this violation,
Error 5 — Roadway Network & Public Infrastructure Capacity Were Not Properly
Evaluated
Caode Citations:
« LDG 7.01.03 — Adequacy of Public Facilities (Concurrency)
« LDC Arficle 11 — Traffic 8 Access Requirements



lssue:
Galliver Cutoff and Keyser Mill Road are narrow rural roads without shoulders, turn
lanes, pedestrian facilities, or capacity upgrades.
No traffic study or concurrency analysis was included for:
e 22 new homes
increased daily trips
construction traffic
emergency vehicle access
schoo! bus routing impacts
Why This Is an Error:
The LDC requires a demonstration that existing public facilities can safely and
efficiently serve the proposed development.
Error 6 — DQ Approval Lacks Clear Demonstration of Comprehensive Plan
Consistency
Code Citations:
« LDC 1.05.00 — Requiretl Consistency with Comprehensive Plan Policies
Issue: '
The DO does not show compliance with policies related to:
« rural character preservation
e stormwater resource protection
» public safety
« responsible infrastructure planning
Why This is an Error:
Every DO must affirmatively prove Comprehensive Plan consistency, not assume if.

o



—

po

8.

4. Corrective Actions Needed to Remedy the Errors
The Petitioner respectfully requests that the County require the following
corrective actions before approval of the Development Order:
. Require a legally accurate lot-size and road frontage evaluation using only
existing, constructed, functioning public roads.

If the road does not exist, sub~10-acre lots cannot be approved.
Require revised stormwater modeling and analysis reflecting:

o actual post-clearing conditions

o seasohal groundwater highs

o hydraulic mounding effects

o soil compaction after illegal clearing

o vegetative removal impacts

o long-term Infiltration performance of the sand chimney system

. Require a full drainage impact study demonstrating zero adverse effects to
neighboring properties.
Require corrective action and restoration for the illegal clearing, including

soil rehabilitation and erosion control measures.
Require a traffic and infrastructure capacity analysis addressing safety,
access, simergency response, and concurrency compliance.
. Require independent third-party inspections for all stormwater components,
especially the sand chimney excavation and installation.
Delay or condition the DO approvai until all errors are resolved and the
proposal demonstrates full compliance with all applicable LDC and
Comprehensive Plan requirements.



Bepartment of Growth Management

PETITIONFOR DEVELOPMENT ORDER HEARING
MEMORANDUM OF ERROR

Projact Desctiption: Buttonbush Meadows

File Number:  BQ-0826-0014

1. Petitioher Information,
Nama; 'J"‘%’-—{ N\ﬁﬂmﬁ
Authorized agent for: . R
Address: SSQ««\ M L/L’DL’.',U‘(.;’Sk M %am i ﬁ_ 5953]
Tefephone: ?’E‘D'{E?S'WZD FAX:
emat: T YiedinewsH@ QY1) (s Con

2, Statement of Objection. (As stated in the Pefltion)




3. The specific Cade requirements and provisions by cifation the Petitioner is
ohjecting to, the reasons why the development order Is not consistent with the
identified ¢ltations.

See ooached)

4. Any corrective actions to remedy objections reised in the Petition.

e Od_’f@

Petitioner signatura: \}MV‘/\

Pefitioner typed of printeég@ez: UT?Q‘%/W mﬂ?" hﬂrds
Date |218’|Z?) ; d

Date recelved by Growth Management: !m{?!&pm
Recaived by: L. V(]\-“Q—‘:EJ"\_O/“




3. Spacific Code Requirements and Provisions by Cliatlon

The proposed developmant is not congistent with tha following Comprahensive Plan requirements
governing campatibitity, denslty, and protection of agrictltural arcas:

1.

Okaloosa County Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Element (FLU) Polioy 1.1.7 ~
Agricultural {AG) Future Land Use Gategory

This pollcy states that agricultural araas are Intenced to praserve rural character, malntaln
low residentlal denslties, and prevent the encroechment of lncompatible suburhan
subelivision pettarns frto agriculivral communities, .

FLU Policy 1.3.1 ~ Gompatibility Requiremeant

Al new devslopment must be “compatible with, and not advarsely Imipact, existing
nalghboring uses.”

Compatlhitity Includes density, scals, intensity, traffle Impaots, environmental impacts, and
community character,

FLU Folicy 1.4.3 - Transitional Densities
Higherdensity of suburban subdivisions must orty be located whara thay translilon

appropriately from rural/sgricultural land and do ot create abrupt, Incompatible denstty
increases,

Land Development Code (LDC) Bection 2.02.01 — Purpose of Zoning Districts
Agriculture zonng districts ave intended to malntalh vary taw density and protect
ggricultural opgrations frath enoreachmant by incompatible regldenttal subdivision
patterns.

LD Section 2.03.02 - Compatibllty Standards
Reguires that proposed developmant “shall be consistent and harmonlous with the
character of surrounding land uses,” ncluding density, teyout, and development pattarm,

Reasons the Dovelopment Qrder Is Not Conslistent With These Gltations

The Developtmant Order tafla to comply with the Comiprehansive Plan and LDC for the foltowing
regicons:

1. Denslty ls Not Compatilile With Surrounding Agricultural Lands

The surrounding area is zoned and used primarlly for Agricutiural (AB) purposes, where
residentlal density is traditionally 1 dwelling per 10 acres {or slmillarly low rural denstifes).

Tha proposed subdivision Introduces small-lot, high-dansity residentiat developmant,
which oonatltutas a signifleant and abrupt inerease in denslty compared to the
surrounding agricultural communlity.



4, The petitioner assetts that the following correctlve actions would be necessary to bring
the proposed development into cempliance with the Okaloosa County Comprehensive
Plan and Land Development Codet

Corrective Action 1: Provide Legal, Code-Gompliarit Acoess to an Existing Gounty-
Maintained Road

To remedy tha violation of LDG road-access requlrements and one-acre minimuim lot slze
provisions tied to access;

+ The developer must obtain and damonatrate legal accessto a currently existing,
County-maintained road, as fe quired by the Okaloosa County LDC.

« lfno such road exists, the davaloper must either:
{a) Construct a public road meating County standards, and
{b) Have thet road formally accepted Into County maintenance, prior to approval
ofthe Developimant Order.

« Altematively, the developar mustrevise the project to comply with the one-acfe fot
mintmtm required when accesg does hot meet County-maintained road standards.

Until thase conditions ata met, the development cannot satisfy LDC access requirernents,

Corrective Action 2: Ensure the Acoess Road Is Formally Accepted Into Gounty
Maintennnce

To resolve the objection that the road providing access has niot bean accepled:

« The devéloper must submit dogumentation demonstrating that the access road has
heen censtructed to County standards, inspectad, and officlally scoepted Into
Caunty maintenanece; or

« Rovise the development so that the project relies solaly oh an existing, already-
maintained public roadway that meets all applicatila standards.

I the road Is not accepted into County maintenance, tha Development Order must be
denied ot the project must bs rasubmitted with compliant access.

-y

Corrective Action 3; Reduce Density and Modify the Subdivision Layout fo Ensure
Compatibitity With Surrounding Agrleultural Lands



To ramedy the Incompatibility violation under Comprehenalve Plan FLU Policles 1,1.1,
1.4.1, 1.4,8 and LDC 2.03,02:

Tha developer riust ravise the project so that:

+ Rasidentlal denslty is significantly reduced to create o reasonable, gradual
transitlon fram agricultural lands,

= Lot sizes and subdlvision pattern reflect sural-appropriate densities cohsistent
with tha surraunding AG area.

» Buffers or transttional areag are added to prevent adverse impacts oh agricultural
gperations.

» The subdivision layout is redesigned to allgn with the existing rural character,
enstring compliance with tha Comprahensive Plan's campatibilty mandate.

if density I3 not reduced, the development remains Inoompatible and noncompliant with
the Comprahenslve Plaj,



Daparfment of Growth Management

PETITIONFOR DEVELOPMENT ORDER HEARING
MEMORANDUNM OF ERROR

Project Deseription: Buttonhush Meadows

File Number;  D0-0625-0014

1. Petitioner information.
Name: T&"‘ “C':f W&%‘&UD%
Aulhorlzed agent for: s
Address: S5 AL S wele w““’mﬂ RA gﬂ\kﬂ') L 32832/
Telaphona:quo”f;sg*g‘fﬁ( FAX:
Ermll; "Lf&ffﬂtfﬁ-bhmf:@%muﬁpﬁh

5. gGtaternent of Ohjection. (As stated in the Petitian)

See ﬂ-‘h(aa,‘vu-e.cﬂ




3. The specific Gode requirements and provisions by citation the Petitioner is
objecting to, the reasons why the development order is not consistent with the
identified citations.

S ee #H‘@M

4. Any corrective actions to remedy objections raized in the Pefitlon.

See ﬂ—%m\«uaﬁ

Pefitionar signature: / '

L
Petitioner typad or printed name: "TNLG';.# m w‘{‘Lﬁf—Qﬁ
Date: _JRA~B-HS

[Mate received by Growth Manhagement: ) | X | REOL N .

Racelvad by: W@, T an




4.The petitioner objects to the Development Order on the grounds that the proposed
subdivision does not satisfy the one-acre toinlmum Lot sxemption allowsd wlthin the
Agriculture (AG) Zoning District due to lack of required access from an existing county-
maintatned roadway, The following specific pravisions of the Okalooss County Land
Development Coda (LDC) are implicated:

Applicable Cade Requirements
1. LDC Section 2.16.02 ~ Agriculture Districk (AG) Dimensional Reguirements

This section establishes the minimum lot sizes applicable within the AG district and
includes the Ymited one-acre Lot exemption that may apply only when the parcel has
legal access to ah existing, county-maintained roadway.

2, LDC Section 6.04.01 ~Access Requirements fot Lots and Subdivisions

This section reguires that all lots must have legal access via an existing county-
maintained road or a road constructad to county atandards and formally accepted into
county malntenance.

Lots created without compliant road access cannot quatlfy for raduced minimum lot sizes.

3 LDG Saction 4.03.03 ~Development Order Consistency Red uirements

All Development Orders must be conslstent withthe County's LDG and Comprehansive
Plan. ADO cannot he approved If the proposed lot sizes violate applicable zoning and
accoss standards,

Reasons the Development Order Is Not Con sigtent With Thase Citatlons
1. The project does not have access from an existing county-maintained road.

The subdivisiot proposss fo use a road that is not gurrantly maintained by Okaloosa

" Gounty.
Because the road has not baen constructed to county standards norformally accepted
Into county maintenance, it does ot mest the access requirements in LDC 6.04.01,

12, Without county-maintained road acoess, the development sannot legally use the
one-acre minimum Lot exemption in the Agriculiure District.

Tha LDC makes the ona-acre exemption available onty when a parcel ls accessad by a
county-malntained public road,



Sinee this condition Is not met, the projoct must comply with the defautt AG minimum lot
size, which is substantially larger than one acre.

The proposed lots tharafore do not meet AG zoning dimensional requiremants under
LbC 2.16.02,

3, Because the proposad Lot sfzes violate the AG zoning requirements, the
Davelopment Order canhot be considered conslstent with the LDC.

Under LDC 4.03.08, the Coumiy cannot lawfully approve a DO that is Inconststent with
zoning ant accass requiremants,

Approving a DG with substandard lots would constiiute nencompliance with the LDC,
and therefore cannat ba permitied.

4. To bring the proposed subdivision into compliance with the Land Developient Cade
{LDC) requirerents for minimurm lot size In the Agriculture (AG) District, the following
cotractive actlons would ba hacasaary:

Corrastive Actlon 1: Pravide Access From an Existing, County-Maintalned Road

Becausea the one-acre examption In tha AG distriot applies only when tots have accaess to
an exisiing county-malntained roadway, the developer must:

« Demonstrate that the subdiviaion has lagal acoess to a currently maintained
public roadway; or

o GConstruct the acossa road to full Okaloosa County standards and ohtain format
acceptance into county maintenance befora approval of the Development Order,

Unth the road Is accepted into caunty maintenance, the one-acre exsmptlion cannot legally
be used.

Corrective Actlon 2: Revise the Suhdivision to Meot Full AG Minimum Lot Slze
Requlrements



If the developer cannot provide compliant access to a county-rmaintained roadway, tha
LDC raguites that:

. All lots be enlarged to mest the default minimum AG Lot slze applicable when the
axemption does not apply.

» Thesubdivision layout must be redesigned accordingly.

This ensures the praject complles with LDC & 2.16.02.

Caofrective Action 3: Resubmit a Development Order Gonsistent With Zoning and
Access Requirements

To satisfy LDC § 4.03.03 (consistency requlrement), the developar must:

« Revise and resubmit the Davelopment Order showing efther
{a) proper access from a county-maintained road, or
(b} lot slzes corracted to the logatly required AG minimum lot size.

A Davelopment Order relyingon substandard Lot sizes cannot be approved under the LDGC.



TN G0 eyt vl ea i "'"W' dhennsptiengy Ll o :?i;'-‘.- ey
ooy aedatnoos deaevoab et o “"mnﬁ"i}x:%?

"_,f;‘]‘

fi lﬁ'*l A [; J{i‘r”p@

Departmant of Growth Management

PETITION FOR DEVELOPMENT ORDER HEARING
MEMORANDUM OF ERROR

Project Deseription: 3w T NTusH Meadonls

File Nunther:.. b@“OGQ—g" 6}{)/5[ -

1l i) u'f fw. sEaig snpen b PRI P PV

1. Pet:tronarlnfarmato A
Nema: v (TR i UN‘AE%— :
Authorlzed agent far: .
ndcress 7 FUD S Aend N PAKER,
Telephons: FAX:
Emal: V£ CA LL (%] B Gmbs s o M

RN L T L o T

2. Btatement of Objection. (As statad In the Patition)
Wered  No  ERSTidy Rofo, THE
CoLNTY apMmissiond NEEAS T
@@mmy wit CufRenT LIS,

CHL T N v g

ur a s ke e el [ N

ORI e gt e 200

U UURU RNV - L b 0 BT & AL e e T




o

3. The specific Code requirements am;l provisfons by citation the Petitioner is

objecting to, the reasons why thnfgieveloptn ant order s not consistent with the

Identifiad citations.
PeR. toBE 2 ol 0'4'
D(CC =S Mu.ﬁﬁrn;rﬁ}fgﬂvﬁﬁ@mﬁ[wi:#\miﬂ EXIST/ING

W__.,.-—-‘-wmm'—-—-—-m.l

R M},w’:f {"’.,:ﬁ:;;sf TSI TG S0 ST, 1
Ko GREVETECR T MR SRR

- . ERLTEL.
Lt o SR AT

b ek M o TR YR kARl Y 1 TGS A, S U R A T B 1 4

L e -ttt i S

4 Any-corrective-actions-to-remedy- objections-ralsed-inthe- Petitlon.» e
etitrhet By e RS

Vee-. g‘;%\_e‘md@;«, LopdEs ol NEN
LD/IQZZ:O‘PME—N p_EDW A 'i'" '."'"' - - " ” _ﬁ -jh“ '“'hf’

Uttt any r Bborale 28] Stoling s e e e b,

Pefitioner signature: _/
Petltioner typed or printed name: f cc:mwz LA H 103 jd‘f/&
Date : //' 22 %!}26'

Date received by Growth Managemernt: 1 !‘ e i 2

Recelved by: Vh2. g&'g ,g/_LO_A

F




Department of Growth Management

PETITION FOR DEVELOPMENT ORDER HEARING
MEMORANDUM OF ERROR

Project Description; Buttonbush Meadows

File Number; DO-0625-0014

1. Petitioner Information.

Name; Wesley Florez

Authorized agent for;

Address: 5918 Buck Ward RD, Baker, FI. 32531

Telephone: 937-807-1717 FAX;

Email: Wesley. florez@gmail.com

2. Statement of Objection. {As stated in the Petition)

Please see petition,




3. The specific Code requirements and provisions by citation the Petitioner is
objecting to, the reasons why the development order is not consistent with the

identified citations.
1) Developer already committed a significant violation of the LDC by clearing wooded land for a road
without an approved development order.

2) Propased development does not meet the Purpose of the Agricultural District defined in LDGC
saction 2.01.01.

3) Proposed development does not meet the intent for the Agricuttural District defined in LDG
section 2.01.02.

4) Proposed development does not meet the Permitied Uses of land in the Agricultural District
defined in LDC section 2.01.04. Comprehensive Plan Policy 10.1B Rural Community applies
and the intent of it must be followed. Since this policy is nof specifically explained in the LDC,
the Comprehensive Plan takes precedence as per LD section 1.03.00 Scope. Florida statute
163.23194 mandates that local governments must adhere to their adopted comprehensive pians.

4. Any corrective actions to remedy objections raised in the Petition.

5) Violates LDC section 2.01.04 #8. One acre lots are permitted only when each lot is accessed by an
existing county-mainted roadway with a minimum of 50 feed frontrage on such a road. No
county-maintained road exists that each lot would be able to accass,

6) Violates established development pattem of the surrounding area, which is intended in the LDC.

7) Violates development compatibility with the surrounding rural and agricuifural land uses.

8) Violates LDGC intention to prevent urban sprawl,

Petitioner sighature: u

==
Petitioner typed or printed name: Wesley Flotez

Date : December 8, 2025

Date recelved by Growth Management: la»! R ‘ 20085

Received by: 1 _0\:@0!"“'}6"'




Department of Growth Management

PETITIONFOR DEVELOPMENT ORDER HEARING
MEMORANDUNM OF ERROR

Project Description: Buttonbush Meadows

File Number;  DO-0625-0014

1. Pelitioner Information.

Narme: A/Atz.mm £ .i‘%ﬂms

Authorlzed agent for;

Address:__ ()24 TRig ;*Jcl\ow:g:v__{ O Pabe- L2253
Telephone: BSD-B4 2o OZ. rax:
Emall; M!yﬁgfm ¥ aa&ams / Ll (B c-?maw?» Cirer

2. Statement of Objection, (As stated In the Pelition)
Vo Q,)ol‘a'%‘n & Cood
Zoved, AG ot rende e




4. The specific Code requirements and provislons by citation the Petitionar is
objecting to, the reasons why the development order Is not consistent with the
identified citations. 7 4/ . (96/

QGM Weg {)éﬂj‘— W:SHPS LYY o\ﬂ‘
Zoned MG }P;;g!‘éﬁm\?%\ Not Cc)mpd.‘\r‘::k\alf

4. Any corrective actions to remeady ohjections raised in fhe Petition.

C\f&.r?ng el S zoned AG arens choold
-f)‘oﬂ\vl be approved Cor Ao purpescs

; Petitloner signature: /ﬂ(%g ” g f//a_u__...__.u

Petliloner typed or ptirted name: Wwifliaem & ﬁQﬁWS
Date: 12~k ~2H

Date recelved by Growth Manhagement. mv,[ [ ‘I 20T
Recalved by: 418N Py 2N

O




EXHIBIT 2

b O el T L M B T BT SETm 0 P
2 SLT FENCNG SHALL BE UTRAED O EADH LOT CLRNG CONSTROCTON
L fResan FLOGT ELOATION WLL BE SET DY IME CONPICTOR, M. 13" ABHE CROM

B Gl DB OO T8 D smmern
TYPICAL LOT DRAINAGE DETAIL

A
LTS OF CORSTNUCTION ... [Ig0344 SF. el
l-p-aui!uiﬂ.illl“u‘! h.__.._uP w

% AREA ____ssqged SF huﬂ
PR SURFACE RATD o

AT DENSITY ALLCWEL

FROPOSED DENSITY i LATTS/ACRE
P ] A

MY AULDWASUE BLDZ. HEGNT 3 STomes (437

.-%
22 LTS

—

—— e
e

#ers-m |mcn

soring And Sunarying, LLC

Authanzaton No. EB-0009313

e =

Cornfeate of

e rew o e

v

Prc (R 090203
Fax. (0} J30p1E

N
azam

SEAS

Seasite LEngineering Amt Surveying, LLC

575,
Bk,

BUTTONBUSH MEADOWS
OVERALL SITE PLAN




EXHIBIT3

Department of Growth Management

Planning Division
1250 N. Eglin Parkway, Suite 301
Shalimar, FL 32579
850-651-7523

Street Name Approval Form

Buttonbush Meadows Subdmsxon

Praject Name:

25-3N-25-0000-0001-0030 / Galliver Cutoff
Chl;i:‘_;_Ryieis/ SEAS, LLC. (Michael C. Granger) -

Location:
Owner / Authorized Agent:
(850)585-2838

 Phone: 1827} 280-2%.

| Email 1yiqulassfc1mn;@gxn;\11 com

.Fax: : e e e e e e e e o e o e
+* Sgreet Names will be approved for the use ONLY in the project and phase listed above **

Excluding the suffix, duplication of Street Names, is prohibited by Okaloosa County Ordinance 91- 6
To search for existlng street names. Go hare hitp: //webgis.myokaloosa.com/webgis/

arth]| Resutts ] Layers | Legendli S

Search By: I Street Name i

Select Street name
in the Search By: box

Street Search:

Search for a straet insteéad of parcel

BIRNALLE LH, SrALIHAR

BINMITKER WAY, SHALIMAR

" PROPOSED STREET NAMES "APPROVED [ DENIED
Lily Blossom Drive X
michael ruzowski secimsimeo eans cxa Date: | 6/1072025

Mike Ruzowski

GIS Analyst, Planner

Okaloosa County Department of Growth management
850-651-7523

mruzowski@myokaloosa.com



PLAT NAME AFFIDAVIT

NAME OF SUBDIVISION: ___Bultonbush Meadows Subdivision

In order fo comply with Horida Statue 177.051. ) have examined the records of the ,
Clerk of the Circult Court of Okaloosa County. Florlda and find no evidence of
any other subdiviston plat by the abave stated neme orin any way similar to any
name appearing on any recorded plat in Okaloosa County thaot might confuse
the records or mislead the public os to the identlity of this subdivision,

Chrlstapher Ryles //

Developer/Owner/Officer of ¢ Corpordtion

Stafe of Florida
County of Qkdloasa

) oLe a, an officer duly authorized, personally appeared

FaTaAS ‘D}Lu?r* 8o, 10 me known, and known to me to be the
Inclividual describad intahd who exscuted the foragoing instrument, and
acknowledged the execution of this Insfrument to be his own frae act and deed
for the use and purposes therein mentioned.

Witness my hand and official seal, this l/ ’{A day of 20

C(/ﬂ@ c@:% L %{ﬂwﬁ

Notary Public

MY P, Nolary Publio State of Flarkia
£\ #% Toalhe

hatha Ann Mcleod
.7 mcammlsalonﬂﬂ 140407
S E Bxploa 11032096
7 of b




Service Provider Report

POTABLE WATER

Application for Cerfification of Concurrancy Reservation

service Provider:

AL A R ALIL  h

Narth
3 Aubum Water [ Boker Water (1 East Milton B Holt water o baural Hill Water
2 Miligon Watear 0 Paxion

South
7 Destin Water Users D . Wailon Bedch 1 Mary Esther Waler o Hicevile watar
o Seminole Water o Soulh Wailon Uliliies
Norh/South

1 Crestview Waler o Okoloosa Woter & Sewer

i Buttonbush Meadows Subdivision

Name of Applican

Date: 09 103 !2025

Location of

Property: Galliver Cutoff, Parcel #25-3N-26-0000-0001-0030

This applicalion is lorﬂLreslden“al units ond/or, soquare feat of non-
residential usags,

Exisfing pormitted freatmant capacily af system as of ldurel__Q.a,a.,.z_g_._.m__..MGD‘ 922025

Plarnad approved capacily expandons cunenlly undenvay of in anral bueget for system os of

jdote). 0. MGD.O2/20256
Existing capacity + expanslons undenvay as of (duiel__g;?,%%m___mGD. 9/212025
Present usoge In MGD of system os ol [dote) 80% 12/31/2024

Capachy this propasal will reciuire bosed on Provider's LOS | MGD) as adopted by the Ckologsa
Counly Board of County Commissoners in Sachon 4.4 Levels of Seivice, Land Develapment Code (Ordinance
21-1). Cateiatest |l ol Honiee 23 Lindka & Ty (Y L G R GED (L0 ML

GIVEN THE FOREGOING, THE SERVIGE PROVIDER:
W, Vaiilies that Ihe applicant & In the sanvice area. g f /
¥ Con provide service arid wil rasewewgﬂﬁw(v’MGD as of {pute).... -5 ¥4 ( .

v Can provide service and will resarve.... MGD upon applicant axeculion of ogreement it provider.

4 Coannot provide savice.

gL s
sarvlee Provider aprasenialive

Signalure.




SOLID WASTE
CONCURRENCY EVALUATION CERTIFICATION
OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA
The following Certificate must be completed and certified by the following;

M. Tim. Reece, Recycling Coordinator
Okaloosa County Recycling Office

84 Ready Avenue

Ft Walton Beach, FL 32548

Phone: (850} 609-6168 FAX: (850)651-7397

PROJECT NAME: Butonbush Meadows Subdivision

1. Solid Waste Facility Affected: Baker Transfer Station

2. Currently Unreserved Capacity:

(prior to project approval)

3. Solid Waste Demand for this project; 27 1.7 ppd

Methodology for Determining Demand;
Residential 22
5 1bs x 2.47 persons per d.u. x number of units = 271.7

Conymercial — Food Hstablishments (repeat in increments of 100)
100 or less employses: 5 cubic yards per day x 120 Ths =

Commetcial — Professional (repeat in increments of 10)
Up to 10 employees: .27 cubic yards per day x 120 Ths =

Comumercial - Retail Services (not food) — Gas Stations, Auto Repair, ste.

Up to 10 employees: .67 cubic yards per day x 120 Tbs =

Industrial — Contact Environmental Waste Systems or County Coordinator

for imstructions,

4, UN-Reserved Capacity AFTER Project Approval:

ppd

ppd
ppd

ppd

5. Adopted LOS: 6 Ibs per day per capita (10.A.2.2)

6. LOS AFTER Approval of this Project; 6 |bs per day per capita

7. Approved: Yes

CERTIFICATION

I, Jim Reece , Solid Waste Contract Manager

(title)
hereby certify that the above is true and correct.

Jim Reece Do s B124/2025

Signature Date



Department of Growth Management
Fire Prevention

Reviews are based on information provided and subsequent information
may be needed dependent on submittal content.

Okaloosa County Fire Prevention Letter of Review

Date: SEPT. 3, 2025
RE: BUTTONBUSH MEADOWS SD, 22 LOTS
Address: GALIVER CUTOFF, HOLT

Applicant: SEAS- Cole Granger
Cole.Granger(@seasllc.net

The applicant has requested a DO for the above project.
PERMIT # 570577-FDO-2025
Disapproved/Approved: APPROVED in coordination with Holt Fire Chief

Comment: Verify the water supply for the area meets fire flow and pressure
requirements as per the Florida Fire Prevention Code, Eight Edition.

When fire hydrants are installed, submit copies of final flow and pressure
test to the water supplier, the fire department who services the area, and
the authority having jurisdiction.

Please contact me if I may be of further assistance.

Wayne Butler
FSFM# 124929

812 James Lee Blvd.
Crestview, FL 32536
850-423-4852 Office
850-305-2282 Cell



MEMORANDUM

TO: Marissa Martinez
Growth Management Dept,

FROM: Michae! Anderson, P.E.
Public Works Department

DATE; October 20, 2025

SUBJECT: Buttonbush Meadows Subdivision

Plans reviewed with the following comments and/or conditions:
L. The Stormwater Management Administrative Review Fee of $150.37 has been paid.
2. Project fronts existing County-maintained road. (Galliver Cutoft).

3. Stormwater Management Plan meets stormwater requirements as per Chapter 6, Section
6.06.00 of Okaloosa County Land Development Code. No stormwater required since the
number of lots is below the minimum for stormwater requirements. Sighed and sealed
letter detailing exemption has been received,

4. Concurrency is in compliance with Chapter 4 of the Okaloosa County Land
Development Code. Mobility Fee has been paid by check in the amount of
$22,198.00.

Plans APPROVED 10/20/25.

ee: Cole Granger, P.I.



DEPARTMENT OF GROWTH MANAGEMENT

PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION
1250 Eglin Parkway North, Suite 301 Shalimar, FIL: 32579

Office Phone: (850) 651-7180 Office Fax: (850) 651-7058
issuance Date: Navember 17, 2025
To: Cole Granger, P.E.
Project Planner: Marissa L. Martinez — Senfor Planner
Project File No./Name; DO-0625-0014 Buttonbush Meadows

Please be informed that the "Notice of intent {NO) to Issue a Development Order (DO)Y” sign for the above-
mentioned subject will be posted on the project site today (11/ 17/25).

And as specified in Section 1A.03.03.4 of the Land Development Code {LDC), upon completion of the
development revlew process and after the reviewing agency have determined preliminary approval of the final
plans, the Planning Official, or designee, shall issue a notice of intent to approve, approve with conditions, or
deny a development order. At this time, the Planning Official, or deslgnee, shall post a 27 X 3" sign in a
conspicuous place on the property involved which will describe the intended action, the type and nature of the
development belng proposed, contact information, and a statement saying that any adversely affected party
may request a “Petition for Development Order Hearing” as specified in Section 1.11.08 of the LDC. At this
time any person may petition on this matter within seven (7} days after this notice of intent is issued. No later
than fourteen (14) days after the date the petition of development arder hearing is filed, the Petitioner shall
submit a "Memorandum of Error” which contains the specific Code requirements and provisions by citation
the Petitioner is objecting to, the reasons why the development order is not consistent with the identified
citations, and any corrective actions to remedy the objection(s) raised. Failure to comply with this part shall
render the petition abandoned and withdrawn. The approved final set signed/sealed of the site development
plans may be routed for final approval to all development review teams. The pending development order will
not be issued during the notice of intent period. If the Department does not receive a Petition for a
Development Order Hearing the development order will be issued as follows.

The applicant Is responsible for routing and obtaining final approval stamps and/or signatures on the final
approved set of plans and the routed set must be Identical to the set approved by the Development Review
Team. Once all permits and approvals have been submitted and the stamped/signed approved final set of the
site development plans have been provided to the Project Planner, a Development Order (DO} can be issued.
The approved set of signed/sealed of the final site development plans needs to be routed to the following
agencies {not in any order, however, Growth Management will be the last agency to sign, and stamp approved
the plans).

¢ North Okaloosa Fire & Life Safety Inspector

+ Holt Water System

« Public Works Department

s Growth Management — Planning Department

1250 Eplin Parkway North, Suite 301 812 E, James Leg Blvd
Shalimar, FL. 32579 Crestview, FL 32539
(B50) 651-7180 (850) 689-5080

FAX (850} 651-T058 FAX (850) 689-1241



'

The Okaloosa County Department of
Growth Management is in receiptof a
Development Order application which
may authorize the development of this

property. The development under

consideration is:
2

YU LOf\bUS‘ h ﬂr\fa()cwt;
} wIVislon

Deloched

(s

For further information contact the
Department of Growth Management
at either one of the following locations.

North Okaloosa County
S A

South Okaloosa County
Crastview Offica 1250 N Eglin PRwy
%é;gﬂ\:odkmaada Driva Shalimar, FL 32579
Grestview, FL 32538 \Phona! (850) ESi-!_IB{?
A Ghone. (850)688:5080 (FAX! ((850)651-7706
i FAX: (850)689:5512







' Leslie Adams

From: Cole Granger <cole.granger@seasllc.net>

Sent: Friday, June 20, 2025 11:33 AM

To: Leslie Adams

Cc: Logan Snow

Subject: Buttonbush Meadows Sub.

Attachments: PXL_20250618_203716803 jpg; PXL_20250618_203721975.MP,jpg

The yellow sign was posted on Wednesday, June 18th, 2025.

I have spoken with Michael about the traffic data. He indicated that | could just create an exemption Letter for the
traffic since section 4.02.02.1(c) indicates trip generation analysis is only needed for developments with 25 units or
More.

Thanks,

Cole

Cole Granger, P.E.

Seaside Engineering and Surveying, LLC
6575 HWY 189N

Baker , Florida 32531

Office: 850.650.9563

Fax:  850.398.6812
Cole.granger@seasllc.n

4+ SEAS

4 Sindde Miaphoerring Amd Saviyibng, LT

r e — — e —————————————————— e ——— s ————————————

CAUTION: This email ariginated from outside the organization. Do
sender and know the content is safe,

not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the




n
=
=
X
P
Ll

- S ]

R e Tl -y

P Ba LR AT, i) Saaal g WYy
BONYAS OL AT NS W L rs = =
KL 4D IINTECRACY AV 300 TR

IDUL0N VI8N




DEPARTMENT OF GROWTH MANAGEMENT

PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION
1250 Eglin Parkway North, Suite 301 Shalimar, FL 32579

Office Phone: (850) 651-7180 Office Fax: (850) 651-7058
Issuance Date: November 17, 2025
To: Cole Granger, P.E.
Project Planner: Marissa L. Martinez — Senior Planner
Project File No./Name: D0-0625-0014 Buttonbush Meadows

Please be informed that the “Notice of Intent (NOI) to Issue a Development Order (DQ)” sign for the above-
mentioned subject will be posted on the project site today (11/17/25).

And as specified in Section 1A.03.03.4 of the Land Development Code (LDC), upon completion of the
development review process and after the reviewing agency have determined preliminary approval of the final
plans, the Planning Official, or designee, shall issue a notice of intent to approve, approve with conditions, or
deny a development order. At this time, the Planning Official, or designee, shall post a 2’ X 3’ sign in a
conspicuous place on the property involved which will describe the intended action, the type and nature of the
development being proposed, contact information, and a statement saying that any adversely affected party
may request a “Petition for Development Order Hearing” as specified in Section 1.11.08 of the LDC. At this
time any person may petition on this matter within seven (7) days after this notice of intent is issued. No later
than fourteen (14) days after the date the petition of development order hearing is filed, the Petitioner shall
submit a “Memorandum of Error” which contains the specific Code requirements and provisions by citation
the Petitioner is objecting to, the reasons why the development order is not consistent with the identified
citations, and any corrective actions to remedy the objection(s) raised. Failure to comply with this part shall
render the petition abandoned and withdrawn. The approved final set signed/sealed of the site development
plans may be routed for final approval to all development review teams. The pending development order will
not be issued during the notice of intent period. If the Department does not receive a Petition for a
Development Order Hearing the development order will be issued as follows.

The applicant is responsible for routing and obtaining final approval stamps and/or signatures on the final
approved set of plans and the routed set must be identical to the set approved by the Development Review
Team. Once all permits and approvals have been submitted and the stamped/signed approved final set of the
site development plans have been provided to the Project Planner, a Development Order (DO) can be issued.
The approved set of signed/sealed of the final site development plans needs to be routed to the following

agencies (not in any order, however, Growth Management will be the last agency to sign, and stamp approved
the plans).

e North Okaloosa Fire & Life Safety Inspector

e Holt Water System

e  Public Works Department

e Growth Management — Planning Department

1250 Eglin Parkway North, Suite 301 812 E. James Lee Blvd
Shalimar, FL 32579 Crestview, FL 32539
(830)651-7180 (850) 689-5080

FAX (850)651-7058 FAX (850) 689-1241



EXHIBIT 6

OKALOOSA COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF GROWTH
MANAGEMENT

APPLICATION FOR CONCURRENCY COMPLIANCE &
DEVELOPMENT ORDER REVIEW

1
[

Y

) .
Date Received: L0111 "!'}' 5 File Number:
i

TYPE OF DEVELOPMENT

m Residential o Commercial o1 Industriat o Minor Division of Land

0 Major (more than 10,000 sqft.) o Minor (less than 10,000 sqft.)

A, CONTACT INFORMATION

APPLICANT:

Name: Chris Ryles Telephone: (850) 585-2838

Address: P.O. Box 711 Baker, FL 32531 E-mail: rylesgrassfanms@gmail.com
Fax:

OWNER(s):

Name: Chrls Ryles Telephone: (850) 585-2838

Add[‘egs: £.0. Box 711 Baker, FL 32531 E‘lnail: ry|esgrassfarm5@gmgﬂ.com
Fax:

AGENT:

Name: Seaslde Engineering and Surveying LLC. Telephone: {850) 650-0563

Add[‘ess: 6575 HWY 189N Baker, FL 32531 E-mail: cole.granger@seasiic.net
Fax:

ENGINEER/ARCHITECT:

Name: Michael Cole Granger TSIEphOI‘LE:: {850) 650-9563

Address: 6675 HWY 189N Baker, FL 32531 E-mail: cole.granger@sesslic.net
Fax:

REVISED SEPTEMBER 23, 2015-MR



B. PROJECT /SITE INFORMATION

l. Type of P[-Oject: Residential Subdivision
2. Future Land Use (FLUM): AG Zoning: AA
3. Cuarrent Use: Vacant Unimproved
4. Parcel Identification Number: _ 26 - 3N . 26 . 0000  _ 0601 . 0030
* Attach proof of ownership (i.e., deed, property tax card, closing statement, ete,)
5. Parcel size: 281 (acres) 1,204,385.85 {(square feet)
6. Building Size: (if applicable) N/A gross square feet
7. Maximum Building Height: 3 STORIES 45
8. Floor Area Ratio (proposed--%): N/A
9. Impervious Surface Area Ratio (proposed-%): NIA
10, Density (allowable—du’s/acre): 4 UnitsiAcre (residential only)
11, Number of dwelling units/lots({ proposed): 0.82 Units/Acre (residential only)
12, Parking (proposed}): 2PerUnit gpaces  Requirement (specific land
use);

13. Name and jurisdiction of existing row to be used for ingress/egress; Galiver Cutoff

(If existing ROW is not within the County’s jurisdiction the applicant/owner is responsible
for providing said jurisdictional entity with site plan and all technical drawings for review)

Adjacent Land Use Designations

FLUM: ZONING: EXISTING:
North: AG AA Vacant Single Family Residential
South* AG AL Vagant Single Family Residential
Last: AG AA Vacant Single Family Resldentlal
West: AG AN Galliver Gutoff
Site Utilities
(Check applicable service)
' Water System Provider; Holt Water Works
0 Sewer System Provider:

= Scptic System
0 Private Well
Iire District/Department; Holt Fire Distdct Impact Fee: §

REVISED SEPTEMBER 23, 2015-MR



Site Environmental Information
(Check if applicable)
Fiood Zone:
oA 0AE oV o VE m X 0 coastal barrier arga
Panel number & date: 12091C0250 SMARGH 08, 2021

Wetlands:
aa FDEP o ACOE 0 Joint m None Acreage:

Coastal;
0 within the coastal constructionline o shoreline protection zone (50” from the mean high water line)

\Dther required Permits
( check if applicable)

FDOT: .
o driveway connection (State roads) o drainage connection (State roads)

FDEP:
m stormwater o wastewater s potable water o swale exempt
o dredge/fill

ACON:
o dredge/fill

County:

m driveway connection ( county roads) 0 drainage connection

APPLICATION CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the information contained in this application is true and correct to the best of my
knowledge. 1 also give permission for County staff to enter upon my property at reasonable times
for the purpose of site ingpections and any other necessary visifs,

4 Lol o

Applicant Signaturé Date = |

REVISED SEPTEMBER 23, 2015-MR



S Seaside Engineering And Surveying, LLC

TRANSMITTAL

DATE: June 11, 2025
ATTN: Okaloosa County Growth Management
RE: Buttonbush Meadows Subdivision

INCLUDED:

+ One complete application package for Growth Management including:
* Review Fee Check: $696.00 (includes $16.00 signage fee)
Developmént Order Application
Property Deed
Agent Affidavit
Florida Sunbiz Annual Report
Street Name Approval Form
Plat Name Affidavit
Solid Waste Concurrency
Complete Set of Civil Plans (24x36 & 11x17)
Boundary and Topographic Survey
Stormwater Management Plan with calculations
* Geotechnical Engineering Report
+ One complete application package for Public Works
» Review Fee Check: $1560.37
» One complete Set of Plans for Fire Review (24X36)
» Review Fee Check: $210.00
« One complete Set of Plans for 811 addressing (11x17)
= Street Name Approval Form

Please call me if you have any questions.

Thanks,
.'\ }\
tj(-ﬁ }f )QGJVUS';’/\M

Cole Granger, P.E,

Seaside Engineering & Surveying, LLC
6575 Highway 189 N Baoker, FL 3253!  Phone {850) 650-9563  Fax (850) 398-6812



EXHIBIT 7




EXHIBIT 8

BUTTONBUSH MEADOWS SUBDIVISION
DOH~001232~2025 Petition for Development Order Hearing

CORRESPONDENCE

e Heather Smallwood Email
¢ Heather Smallwood Email (2)
e Lane Watkins



Daniel "Stuart” Campbell

From: Heather Smallwood <smallwoodsolutions h@gmail.com>

Sent: Monday, March 2, 2026 2:41 PM

To: Daniel *Stuart’ Campbell; Paul Mixon; Samantha Cutsinger; Carolyn Ketchel; Judy
Lorenz; Sherri Cox; Dustin Ricketts; Trey Goodwin; Chelsey Sharon; Drew Palmer; Allison
Sullivan

Subject: Request for Commissioners to Reconsider Buttonbush Subdivision Approval

Dear Cornniissioners,

My name is Heather Smallwood and I am aresident of North Okaloosa as well as a proud Okaloosa County
citizen and constituent. | am writing to respectfully request that my concerns regarding the proposed
Buttonbush Subdivision be entered into the public record and fully considered before any action is taken.

Based on the information available, the county intends to approve the Buttonbush Subdivision on the east
side of Galliver Cutoff Road, just south of Keyser Mill Road, on property currently zoned Agricultural (AG
FLUM / AA Zone), Agricultural zoning is intended to preserve rural character and requires a minimum of 10-
acre lots, with limited exceptions allowing smaller parcels only when located on an existing county-
maintained road.

The Buttonbush proposal appears ta include lots smaller than 10 acres and is not located on a county-
maintained road, which raises serious concerns about consistency with established zoning standards and the
intent of Agricultural designation.

Many residents are troubled by what appears to be another attempt to introduce a dense subdivision into AA
zoning, The county is already involved in litigation related to the Buckhaven development under similar
circumstances, with a judgment expected on March 25. Given this pending decision, it is reasonable to
question why approval of another comparable project is being rushed forward heforehand.

As a constituent whose family and community are directly impacted by growth decisions in North Okaloosa, I
respectfully ask the Commission to:

« Ensure all approvals strictly follow existing Agricultural zoning regulations
« Delay consideration of Buttonbush until the Buckhaven judgment is issued
« Protect the rural character and infrastructure capacity of North Okaloosa

+ Formally acknowledge and record citizen concerns prior to any vote

My voice, along with many other residents, deserves to be heard and noted for the record. Responsible growth
matters, and decisions made today will shape our community for generations to come.

Thank you for your time, your service, and your careful consideration of this matter.
Respectfully,
Heather Smallwood

North Okaloosa Resident
Okaloosa County Citizen

Cell: 513-293-6280



Email: Smallwoodsolutions.h@amail.com

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not cli

ck links or open attachments unless you recognlize the
sender and knaw the content is safe.




Daniel "Stuart" Campbell

From: Heather Smaliwood <possumridgecommunity@gmail.come>

Sent: Monday, March 2, 2026 2:45 PM

To: Daniel "Stuart" Campbell; Paul Mixon; Samantha Cutsinger; Carolyn Ketchel, Judy
Lorenz; Sherri Cox; Dustin Ricketts; Trey Goodwin; Chelsey Sharon; Drew Palmer; Allison
Sullivan

Subject: Buttonbush

Pear Commissioners,

On behalf of the Possum Ridge community here in North Qkaloosa, Okaloosa County citizens, and
constituents, we respectfully ask that our concerns be entered into the public record regarding the
proposed Buttonbush Subdivision on the east side of Galliver Cutoff Road just south of Keyser Mill Road.
This project is proposed on land zoned Agricultural {AG FLUM/AA Zone), which is intended for minimum
10-acre lots, with smaller parcels only permitted on existing county-maintained roads. Buttonbush
proposes smaller lots that are not on a county-maintained road, raising serious concerns about
consistency with agricuttural zoning and protection of our rural community. The county is already facing
litigation related to the Buckhaven development under similar circumstances, with judgmeant expected
March 25, making the timing of this approval especially concerning. As constituents, we respectfully ask
you to carefully reconsider moving forward and ensure county decisions follow established zoning
standards and reflect the voices of North Okaloosa residents.

Raspectiully,
Possum Ridge Road Community located off Possum Ridge Rd crestview FL 32539

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not ¢lick links or open attachments unless yau recognize the
sender and know the content s safe.




LBW Buttonbush Planning Commission Comments 2026 03 03

Submitted by Lane Watkins, 6087 Bud Moulton Road, Crestview, 904
673 0788

We need to discuss the Planning and zoning process

The Planning and zoning process places appropriate limitations on our
rights as property owners via the Comp Plan and LDC. As you know, the
role of the Planning Commission is to make sure the county follows the
Comp Plan and LDC.

These documents ensure growth and development are an orderly
process whereby infrastructure and services, at a minimum, keep pace
with development. That boils down to creating zoning districts that
identify the density and intensity appropriate for the level of
infrastructure and services available or planned in the district.

The area where buttonbush is proposed is FLUM/Zoning of AG/AA,
reflecting its rural nature and low residential density. Infrastructure and
services for higher residential density levels are neither provided or
planned.

The intent that this AG/AA FLUM/Zoning area be kept relatively low
residential density is expressly stated in the Comp Plan Chapter 2.1,
Objective 10, Policy 10.1 as “Allowable Density: No more than one (1)
dwelling unit per ten (10) acres. One (1) dwelling unit per one (1) acre
may be allowed when the following conditions are met. a. Access for
each 1 acre lot shall be from an existing state or county maintained
roadway...."”

Those words tell you that density of 1 dwelling unit per 10 acres is the
norm and a higher density is the exception. 22 lots on 26 acres is not



an exception. These policies exist to ensure development meets the
whole purpose of Planning and Zoning: the pace of development
matching infrastructure and services. Buttonbush violates these
policies.

You are considering a challenge to the Buttonbush DO precisely because
the density does not meet the requirements of Policy 10.1 of the Comp
Plan (The same language in LDC Chapter 2. Zoning Regulations, 2.01.00
AGRICULTURE (AA) DISTRICT, 2.01.04 Permitted Uses, Section 8.

There is no existing county maintained road to provide access ta the
proposed lots, thus no reason to consider approving lots less than 10
acres.

County Growth Management has adopted an unofficial and
undocumented policy of ignoring the existing road requirement and
allowing inappropriate density. Thay claim they have done this several
times.

The intent of the Comp Plan Objective 10 and LDC 2.01.00 is to limit
density. The county has demonstrated intent to flaunt the requirement
to limit density in this AA area while having no intent or plan in place to
identify the area as other than rural or providing urban or suburban
infrastructure or services to this AG/AA FLUM/Zoning.

The fact that the county has done it incorrectly more than once does
not make it policy. In allowing the Buttonbush DO to get this far, they
have stated their intent to violate Objective 10 of the Comp Plan and
2.01.00 of the LDC.



The county is being sued over the inappropriate Buckhaven subdivision
approved via the same flawed unofficial policy. A ruling is expected in
that case on March 25, 2026.

The appropriate thing for you to do is recommend denial of the
Buttonbush Development Order.

Failure of Water Systems to provide adequate pressure/flow

Recent testing conducted or witnessed by county personnel at a
location approximately 2.5 miles from the subject property
demonstrated the water flow rate did not meet specification. The
county knows this. Until the water system for Buttonbush can
demonstrate the ability to meet flow and any issues corrected,
recommend denial of this DO,

Compliance with FS 163 restrictions on Urban Sprawl.

As stated above, the stated county intent to ignore the Comp Plan/LDC

policy designed to prevent Urban Sprawl is inappropriate. [n addition to
violating the Comp Plan policy, Buttonbush violates the Florida Statutes
related to Urban Sprawl:

163.3164 Community Planning Act; definitions; Item (54) “Urban
sprawl means a development pattern characterized by low
density, automobile-dependent development with either a single
use or multiple uses that are not functionally related, requiring
the extension of public facilities and services in an inefficient

manner, and failing to provide a clear separation between urban
and rural uses.”



e The Buttonbush development pattern is a density higher
than rural but lower than urban - it does not belong in a
rural AA zoning.

e It is automobile dependent. It belongs in an area such as
the Urban Development Boundary where alternate
transportation is more available or can be readily provided.

o |t is single use with no infrastructure or services

e It is literally miles from infrastructure such as sewer or
relevant public services. Providing these would be
inefficient and unaffordable,

Sections of statute with multi point criteria for determining
Urban Sprawl:

From FS 163.3177(6)(a)9.a(l):

9. The future land use element and any amendment to the future land use element shall discourage
the proliferation of urban sprawl.

a. The primary indicators that a plan or plan amendment does not discourage the proliferation of
urban sprawl are listed below. The evaluation of the presence of these indicators shall consist of an
analysis of the plan or plan amendment within the context of features and characteristics unique to
each locality in order to determine whether the plan or plan amendment;

{I) Promotes, allows, or designates for development substantial areas of the jurisdiction to develop

as low-intensity, low-density, or single-use development or uses.

In the case of AA zoning, 1 acre lots are teo high
density to be rural. This single use, relatively high
density is Urban Sprawl.

(1) Promotes, allows, or designates significant amounts of urban development to occur in rural
areas at substantial distances from existing urban areas while not using undeveloped lands that are
available and suitable for development,

Existing infrastructure and services are miles from this
development with more than plenty of undeveloped land in
between



() Promotes, allows, or designates urban development in radial, strip, isolated, or ribbon
patterns generally emanating from existing urban developments.

Take a look af the Site Plan. It is the definition of
ribbon development, precisely what FS 163 discourages.

(IV) Fails to adequately protect and conserve natural resources, such as wetlands, floodplains,
native vegetation, environmentally sensitive areas, natural groundwater aquifer recharge areas, lakes,
rivers, shorelines, beaches, bays, estuarine systems, and other significant natural systems.

The only protection it provides is meeting outdated
stormwater requirements. Stormwater impacts on
surrounding properties or within the development cannet be
ruled out,

(V) Fails to adequately protect adjacent agricuttural areas and activities, including silviculture,
active agricultural and silvicultural activities, passive agricultural activities, and dormant, unique, and
prime farmlands and soils.

Subject to research on Prime Farm Land

(V1) Fails to maximize use of existing public facilities and services.

Will require expansion of services over inordinate
distance to this location

(VII)  Fails to maximize use of future public facilities and services,

This is a rural area. No future services are planned.
Its location is beyond the practical boundaries for planning
additional infrastructure and services.

(VItl)  Altows for land use patterns or timing which disproportionatety increase the cost in time,
money, and energy of providing and maintaining facilities and services, including roads, potable water,
sanitary sewer, stormwater management, law enforcement, education, health care, fire and

emergency response, and general government.

Providing these items at this distance from existing ones
is not financially possible. The county is not addressing
water and fire now or contemplating doing so in the future.

{(IX) Fails to provide a clear separation between rural and urban uses.



No separation from rural and high density urban
residential is provided

(X) Discourages of inhibits infitl development or the redevelopment of existing neighborhoods and
communities.

This development would be ideal for infill land in Baker or
Holt or Crestview. It is miles, skipping undeveloped
property, from suitable infill

(X1} Fails to encourage a functional mix of uses.

This is a single use residential high density development.

(X1} Results in poor accessibility among linked or related land uses.

Residents will Travel miles to access work, school, fire, law
enforcement

(X1l) Results in the loss of significant amounts of functional open space.

It destroys 26 acres of open space. Where it used to be open
space surrounded by open space, it will be a blight in a rural
AA zoned area.

163.3177(6)(2)9.b(D):

b. The future land use element or plan amendment shall be determined to discourage the
proliferation of urban sprawl if it incorporates a development pattern or urban form that achieves four
or more of the following:

(1) Directs or locates economic growth and associated land development to geographic areas of the
community in a manner that does not have an adverse impact on and protects natural resources and

ecosystems.

Buttonbush represents an isolated pocket of land
development and associated residential economic activity
that will require shifting resources over long distances of
undeveloped land to provide infrastructure and services.

(I} Promotes the efficient and cost-effective provision or extension of public infrastructure and
services,

Buttonbush represents an isolated pocket of land
development and associated residential economic activity



that will require shifting resources over long distances of
undeveloped land to provide infrastructure and services.

(Il  Promotes walkable and connected communities and pravides for compact development and a
mix of uses at densities and intensities that will support a range of housing choices and a multimodal
transportation system, including pedestrian, bicycle, and transit, if available,

It does not connect nor is walkable to any other use such
as grocery, schools, banks, etc. It is single use. It is
automobile dependent, no multimodal transportation

{IV) Promotes conservation of water and energy.

It is a net consumer of water and energy with no planned
increase in utilities

(V) Preserves agricultural areas and activities, including silviculture, and dormant, unique, and
prime farmlands and soils,

It does not do any of these things.

(V1) Preserves open space and natural lands and provides for public open space and recreation
needs.

It destroys 26 acres of open space. It provides no
public open space. It provides ne recreation areas.

{VIl) Creates a balance of land uses based upon demands of the residential population for the
nonresidential needs of an area.

It is no land use but residential. No nonresidential needs
are met. All services are significant distances from this
property.

(VII)  Provides uses, densities, and intensities of use and urban form that woutd remediate an
existing or planned development pattern in the vicinity that constitutes sprawl or if it provides for an

innovative development pattern such as transit-oriented developments or new towns as defined in
5. 163.3164.

It is not innovative and is not a transit oriented
development. It adds to the conflict between urban and
rural and adds to sprawl, not remediates sprawl.



The appropriate thing for you to do is recommend denial of the
Buttonbush Development Order.



